
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 

Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
  

 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 25 October 2022 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Bushby, K Hepple, C Hodson and R Lock 

 
Non elected Members:  Vacancy 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 

 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 7) 

 Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 19 July 2022. 
 

3.   Action List (Page 8) 

 To review the action list.  
 



 
 

 

4.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 

their interest when the item is considered. 
 

5.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

6.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

7.   Audit Reports Issued (Pages 9 - 13) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  
 

8.   Internal Audit  - Charter and Strategy (Pages 14 - 33) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  
 

9.   Annual Report (Pages 34 - 66) 

 To receive a report from Grant Thornton.  
 

10.   2021/22 Audit Findings Report (Pages 67 - 106) 

 To receive a report  from Grant Thornton. 

 

11.   Letter of Representation (Pages 107 - 110) 

 To receive a report from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

12.   Update on PSSA Appointment Process for External Audit of Accounts from 
2023/24 (Pages 111 - 113) 

 To receive a report from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

13.   Forward Plan (Page 114) 

 To review the forward plan.  

 

14.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

15.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

16.   Presentation - Update of Corporate Risk Register  

 To receive an update from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 
 

Tuesday, 19 July 2022 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 

 
 

 Councillors D Brenton (substituting for R Craigie), D Bushby, 

K Hepple and C Hodson 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 

 S Kearney - Head of Communities & Place 
 D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 

 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 
Officer 

 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 

 
 A Davies - Grant Thornton 

 P Middlemass - Devon Audit Partnership 
 

17.    APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillor Lock and Councillor 

Craigie.  Councillor Brenton was present as substitute for Councillor Craigie.  
 

18.    MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 31 May 2022 were presented.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hodson and – 
 

Resolved: 
 

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
(Vote: For 4, Against 0, Abstentions 1) 

 
19.    ACTION LIST  

 

Members reviewed the action list. The action to set up meetings between Grant 
Thornton and TDC was ongoing.  

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

20.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

21.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 

Chair confirmed that there were no Part II items.  

 
22.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CHAIR  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 

 
23.    ESTATE MANAGEMENT AUDIT REPORT  

 

The Head of Communities and Place summarised the report for members and 
provided a progress updated on actions.   

 
It was confirmed that the asset management plan was still being completed, and at 

this time it was unclear if it would be presented to the Community & Resources 
Committee in September or October.   
 

The Head of Communities & Place went on to provide an update on the ELF 
system and updated members on recruitment, specifically the recruitment of the 

new Facilities Manager, Lance Wrey.  An update on the work he has taken on since 
his appointment was provided for members.  
 

Members noted the report.  
 

24.    DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP UPDATE REPORT  
 

The Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Manager provided members with a summary of 

the internal audits completed since the last Audit & Governance Committee.  
 

There were 2 audit reports to note, with the following assurances made: 
 
Substantial Assurance Treasury Management 

 
Reasonable Assurance Climate Change 

 
 
 

The findings of the two audits were highlighted for members along with the agreed 
management actions.   

 
There was also an update regarding work with Active Torridge to complete a 2-year 
plan of internal audits – the planned audits for the first year were highlighted along 

with the timescales for a draft report.  
 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

The DAP manager highlighted checks completed on the Getting Building Fund and 
Contain Outbreak Management Fund and asked members for questions.  

 
Members queried if the findings of the Active Torridge audits would dovetail with the 

reports / business plan due at Full Council. It was confirmed that the draft findings 
would be due at the end of August / September, so could dovetail well with the 
report on the business plan.  

 
It was explained that the feedback process for DAP would be with the Head of 

Active Torridge and the Board, who would agree the recommendations, and it was 
planned to present the findings to this committee.  
 

There was a discussion in relation to the planned Brunswick sea-defences and 
members queried if TDC staff would have sight of the designs and construction 

before work starts.  It was confirmed that a joint spec was being agreed and an 
expert has been jointly appointed to sign this off.  Members were reassured that 
TDC team will be involved in the design stages.  

 
Members asked for an update on progress regarding electric charging points in 

TDC car parks.  The Head of Legal and Governance (& Monitoring Officer) 
provided members with an updated and confirmed that work is progressing to 
assess the viability of sites and any findings would be shared with members.  

 
Following a discussion regarding other types of charging points, like lampposts, it 

was explained that there was currently no grant funding available and the need to 
assess financial viability was highlighted.  
 

Members duly noted the report. 
 

25.    DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2021/22  
 

The Section 151 Officer provided a detailed presentation which summarised the 

information within the draft statement of accounts 2021/22. At the end of the 
presentation the key highlights from the statement of accounts were explained and 

members were asked for any questions.  
 
There was a query regarding the collection rate for Council Tax.  The Section 151 

Officer confirmed that this was ahead of target and that a formal response will be 
provided within the QBR.  

 
Members noted the report.  
 

26.    GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT  
 

 
Andrew Davies (Programme Manager Grant Thornton) presented the report to 
members and directed them to the progress update on page 149 of the agenda.  

 
An update was provided regarding the delayed signing off the 2020/21 audit. 

Members were advised that work is complete and due to be signed when the Key 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

Audit Partner (Julie Masci) returns from leave. It was stated that the Audit 
Certificate could not be issued at this time and the reasons were explained.  

 
An update was provided on the Value for Money work and it was stated that the 

aim would be to have this work back on track for September - additional resource 
had been brought in to help with this.  
 

The audit opinion for 2021/22 audit has now started and an update on the progress 
was provided for members. It was stated that there was nothing to flag to members 

at this stage.  
 
The Programme Manager for Grant Thornton advised members that, at time of 

presenting the audit plan, the audit fees had not been agreed nationally by Grant 
Thornton.  Members were directed to pages 157-8 of the update report where the 

fees for the 2021-22 audit have been set out.  These were explained for members 
and context was provided.  
 

Specific mention was made of the remote working fee. It was explained that 
Torridge would not incur this charge because there would be a hybrid work style 

and some work would be completed on site.   
 
Members asked for assurance that there were no hidden extras and the 

Programme Manager for Grant Thornton confirmed this, but explained that if there 
were significant issues found during the audit and additional work was required, 

there may be an additional fee for this. 
 
Following a member query regarding the increase in charges for 2020-21 from 

2019-20 it was confirmed that this was related to the additional work on Value for 
Money. It was explained that this was related to the 2021 National Audit Office 

issuing a new Code of Audit Practice, which expanded the work that was required 
of auditors, which required more detailed drilling down. It was confirmed that this 
was mandatory. 

 
Members noted the report 

 
27.    FINAL ACCOUNTS FINDINGS REPORT - GRANT THORNTON  

 

The Programme Manager for Grant Thornton advised members that this had 
already presented as part of the previous agenda item – Grant Thornton Update 

Report.  He stated that the Audit Findings Report had been updated to show Grant 
Thornton’s position as of the 8th July.  
 

Members noted the report.  
 

28.    CONTRACT WAIVERS - ANNUAL REPORT  
 

The Section 151 Officer explained the purpose of a contract waiver and highlighted 

a chart on the second page of the report, which provided detail on the number of 
contract waivers that had been issued each year.  

 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

It was explained that the appendix provided the detail on contract waivers signed 
over the year and the reasons for signing the waivers.  

 
 

Members noted the report.  
 

29.    FORWARD PLAN  
 

Chair introduced the Forward Plan and members discussed the committee agendas 

and the reports that were included. It was raised that the size of agendas could be 
seen to impact members ability to fully examine documents and understand issues, 
and then agree or challenge the actions.  

 
Members queried if the Audit & Governance Committees could be reviewed to 

produce shorter, more focused agendas, possibly increasing the number of 
meetings within a cycle. The logistics of this were highlighted and the role of the 
Auditors and their reports was highlighted.  

 
During discussion it was recognised that, if there was a specific area of concern 

noted, the relevant council officers should be made available at the Committee 
meeting to answer questions.  
 

It was confirmed that members were able to stay behind after the Committee to ask 
questions of the Auditors 

 
The work of the auditors was recognised, but members restated the need to be fully 
conversant with the reports in order to robustly challenge.  

 
The DAP Manager highlighted that any reports were sent to members in advance of 

the meeting, which was recognised as good practice. He advised they were happy 
to meet with members to discuss their reports and any recommendations. A recent 
committee was also highlighted where officers were called in to provide an update 

to members and the DAP manager explained this was also recognised good 
practice.   

 
The Programme Manager from Grant Thornton provided some context on audit 
work across the sector and the challenges of sitting as member of the committee.  

 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.10 pm 
 

 
 

 

Page 7



ACTION LIST 

Audit & Governance Committee – 19 July 2022 
 

Minute 

No. 

Raised by Action Allocated To Progress Update Status 

10. Key Audit 
Partner 

Set up monthly meetings with the 
Section 151 Officer 

Key Audit 
Partner 

  

      

      

      

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 3



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

  

REPORT OF DAP Audit Partnership 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: 25 October 2022   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the internal audit 
reports issued since the last Audit and Governance Committee to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise. In addition, we 
present the DAP Charter and Strategy. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of internal audit reports 
issued. This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to the reports.  

 
As members receive a full copy of the internal audit report upon release, they are encouraged to 
raise any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time. This summary report 
gives an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters. 

 
This report includes all final internal audit reports issued to date that have not been previously 
reported to the Committee.  
 
We also include as an attachment, the DAP Internal Audit Charter and Strategy. It is a 
requirement under Public Sector Internal Audit Standards for this to be in place.   

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are two audit reports to note: 
 

 Northam Burrows. 
 Council Tax 

 
We also provide an update on our work with Active Torridge to confirm appropriate controls 
are in place.  

 

  
  

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 

Equality/Diversity 
None. 
 
Risk Management 

The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks faced by 
the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved by members. 
 
Each internal audit report provides the following key information: 
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area. 
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses. 
 
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived 
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix. 
 
The report may also include ‘opportunity’ findings, which are suggested courses of action perceived 
to add value and included for consideration. 
 
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management during 
the draft audit stage. 
 
Reporting of progress to implement internal audit actions to the Audit & Governance Committee is 
the responsibility of the Finance Director / S151. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit Committee terms of reference and the Audit Procedures 
Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits that 
have been awarded each level: 
 

Opinion Audit 

Substantial Assurance 
‘A sound system of Governance’ 

 

Reasonable Assurance  
‘Some scope for improvement’ 

Northam Burrows 

Council Tax 

Limited Assurance 
‘Improvement is required’ 

NA 

No Assurance 
‘Immediate action required’ 

NA 

 

Page 10



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
 
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: Note the reports issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, 
suggestions or proposals relating to the internal audits in this report. It is also asked to note the 
Audit Charter and Strategy. 

 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee Chair 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
Paul Middlemass – DAP Audit Manager 

  
Background Papers: 

 
Audit files 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 11



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

 
Overview of Reports Issued not previously reported to Committee 

 

Northam Burrows 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable  
 
No of management actions made / agreed:  Two Medium 
 
Summary   

Visitor numbers to Northam Burrows have risen significantly due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the 
various restrictions imposed on the public. Over 8,600 visitors accessed the new Visitors Centre which 
opened part way through 2021. These visitor numbers have led to significant increases in income 
generated through the sale of daily and season tickets. Whether visitor levels remain at these levels 
following the end of Covid-19 restrictions is difficult to forecast. Certain 2022/23 income budget lines 
have however been increased to reflect income levels attained in 2021/22. The current forecast is for 
a budget surplus of £79k for 2022/23. 

It appears that the Northam Burrows Country Park Management Plan was last revised / issued in 
2013. Work is needed to develop the draft management plan to provide strategic direction on the park, 
particularly related to the environment and biodiversity. 

Paragraph 4.3.1 of the Management Plan states, ‘to implement proposals as desired, efforts should be 
made to secure the maximum income possible, whilst taking into consideration other management 
constraints and the overall Aim of the Plan’. Review of the Northam Burrow charges as part of 2023/24 
budget process, including those which have been static for several years, may help balance the 
increase in visitor numbers against the environmental impact that results.  

With the new facilities and increases in visitor numbers a Health & Safety inspection is long overdue 
and should be undertaken at the earliest opportunity. Appropriate controls exist over the collection of 
charges, and sundry debtor accounts are raised promptly for income due from the Royal North Devon 
Golf Club, the Pebbleridge Kitchen and two concessions. 

 

Council Tax 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable  
 
No of management actions made / agreed:  One Medium, two Low.  
 

Summary 

We found processes to be effective and timely; discounts and exemptions were accurately applied; 
valuation agency office changes were timely.  Separation of duties were in place for refunds and write 
offs with authorisation in line with policy.  System access to make changes to parameters are 
adequately restricted. Considering the challenges faced by the team, including the pandemic and 
facilitating grants and the energy rebate scheme, staff vacancies and training new staff, the service 
they have continued to provide has been commendable. Despite these challenges, collection rates 
have been very good; 2021/22 is 97.55% which is a very good rate of collection.  This compares well 
with collection rates prior to the pandemic (2020/21 - 97.33% and 2019/20 - 97.80%).   

However, the reduced emphasis and resources on chasing due council tax has reflected in increased 
level of arrears, which has escalated in the last few years:   

 

Page 12



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

 

 

The total accumulated debt for the 
period 2015/16 to current year is 
£2,750,143 

 
There is also debt outstanding from 
2015/16 which the team does not have 
time to review.   

 

 

 

 

The Medium Recommendation in the report related to the council focusing on reducing the amount of 
historic debt.  

 

Grant Certifications: 

We checked and provided certification for the following grant: 

Getting Building Fund – Northern Biosphere (related to £172,776 received via Somerset County 
Council)  

 

Active Torridge 

We issued a final report on Active Torridge on 12 October 2022. It provides assurance and 
recommendations on the areas below. We understand Active Torridge may decide to submit the report 
to council via the External Overview and Scrutiny Committee or other body.    

 Budget setting and budgetary control. 
 Main Accounting System. 

 Creditors. 

 Safeguarding. 

 Facilities Maintenance. 

 Health and Safety. 

 Training and Qualifications. 

 Data Protection. 
 Information Systems and Security. 

 Contract Management and Monitoring (mainly related to the primary contractor: Active Nation) 
 

Page 13



INTERNAL AUDIT 

CHARTER AND STRATEGY
TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
(October 2022) 

REFERRAL TO TORRIDGE AUDIT and GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE OCTOBER 2022
This Internal Audit Charter and Strategy is referred to the Audit Committee for approval. 

MISSION
The Mission of Devon Audit Partnership is to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk based and objective 
assurance, advice and insight across its partners.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
This document details the Internal Audit Charter and Internal Audit Strategy for Torridge District Council as required by the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The Audit Charter formally describes the purpose, authority, and principal responsibilities of 
the Council’s Internal Audit Service, which is provided by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP), and the scope of Internal Audit work. 
This Charter complies with the mandatory requirements of the PSIAS. The accompanying Audit Strategy is designed to deliver the 
requirements outlined in the Charter.

DEFINITIONS
Internal auditing is defined by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as “an independent, objective assurance and 
consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes”.
The PSIAS set out the requirements of a ‘Board’ and of ‘Senior Management’. For the purposes of the internal audit activity within The 
Council the role of the Board within the Standards is taken by the Council’s Audit Committee and Senior Management is the Council’s 
Leadership Team. They also make reference to the role of “Chief Audit Executive”. For The Council this role is fulfilled by the Head of 
Devon Audit Partnership (HoDAP).

1

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 8

https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/


Charter
1. Statutory Requirements and Purpose of 

Internal Audit

2. Professionalism, Ethics and 
Independence

3. Authority

4. Accountability

5. Responsibilities

6. Management

7. Internal Audit Plan and Resources

8. Internal Audit Reporting

9. Relationship with the Audit Committee 
and Non Conformance to the Charter

10. Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme

Strategy
• Audit Strategy - Purpose

• Annual Audit Opinion

• Audit Planning & Delivery

• Performance Management & Quality 
Assurance

• Resources and skills

• Staff Development and use of MKI

2

INDEX TO SECTIONS OF THE CHARTER AND STRATEGY

P
age 15



Statutory Requirements
Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which state:

5.—(1) A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards 
or guidance.

In addition, the Local Government Act 1972, Section 151, requires every local authority to designate an officer responsible for the proper 
administration of its financial affairs. In The Council, this is the Section 151 Officer’. One way in which this duty is discharged is by 
maintaining an adequate and effective internal audit service.

The Purpose and Aim of Internal Audit
The role of Internal Audit is to understand the key risks of the Council, to examine and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
system of risk management and the entire control environment as operated throughout the organisation, and contribute to the proper, 
economic, efficient and effective use of resources. In addition, the other objectives of the function are to:
• Support the Section 151 Officer to discharge his / her statutory duties 
• Contribute to and support the Finance function in ensuring the provision of, and promoting the need for, sound financial systems
• Support the corporate efficiency and resource management processes by conducting value for money and efficiency studies and supporting the work of 

corporate working groups as appropriate
• Provide a quality fraud investigation service which safeguards public monies.

The existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management to establish systems of internal control to ensure that 
activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner. 

Internal Audit for The Council is provided by Devon Audit Partnership. We aim to provide a high quality, professional, effective and efficient 
Internal Audit Service to the Members, service areas and units of The Council, adding value whenever possible. 

3

CHARTER - STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS AND PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT

P
age 16



Being Professional
Devon Audit Partnership will adhere to the relevant codes and guidance. In particular, we adhere to the Institute of Internal
Auditors’ (IIA’s) mandatory guidance including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards. This mandatory guidance constitutes principles of the fundamental requirements for the 
professional practice of internal auditing within the public sector and for evaluating the effectiveness of Internal Audit's 
performance. The IIA's Practice Advisories, Practice Guides, and Position Papers will also be adhered to as applicable to 
guide operations. In addition, Internal Audit will adhere to The Council’s relevant policies and procedures and the internal 
audit manual. Internal Auditors must apply the care and skill expected of a reasonably prudent and competent internal 
auditor. Due professional care does not, however, imply infallibility.
Our Ethics
Internal auditors in UK public sector organisations must conform to the Code of Ethics as set out by IIA. This Code of Ethics

promotes an ethical culture in the profession of internal auditing. If individual internal auditors have membership of 
another professional body then he or she must also comply with the relevant requirements of that organisation.
The Code of Ethics extends beyond the definition of internal auditing to include two essential components:

1. Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing.
2. Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of internal auditors.

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to internal auditors serving others, and applies to both individuals and entities that 
provide internal auditing services. The Code of Ethics promotes an ethical, professional culture. It does not supersede or 
replace Codes of Ethics of employing organisations. Internal auditors must also have regard to the Committee on Standards 
of Public Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life.

CHARTER - PROFESSIONALISM, ETHICS AND INDEPENDENCE

4

P
age 17



Being Independent
Internal Audit should be independent of the activities that it audits. The status of Internal Audit should enable it to function
effectively. The support of the Council is essential and recognition of the independence of Internal Audit is fundamental to 
its effectiveness.
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership should have direct access to and freedom to report in his or her own name and 
without fear or favour to, all officers and members and particularly to those charged with governance (the Audit 
Committee). In the event of the necessity arising, the facility also exists for Internal Audit to have direct access to the Chief 
Executive, the S.151 Officer and the Chair of the Audit Committee.
The Council should make arrangements for Internal Audit to have adequate budgetary resources to maintain organisational 
independence.
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership should have sufficient status to facilitate the effective discussion of audit strategies,
audit plans, audit reports and action plans with senior management and members of the Council.
Auditors should be mindful of being independent, and must:

• Have an objective attitude of mind and be in a sufficiently independent position to be able to exercise judgment, express opinions and 
present recommendations with impartiality;

• Notwithstanding employment by the Partnership / Council, must be free from any conflict of interest arising from any professional or 
personal relationships or from any pecuniary or other interests in an activity or organisation which is subject to audit;

• Be free from undue influences which either restrict or modify the scope or conduct of their work or significantly affect judgment as to 
the content of the internal audit report; and

• Not allow their objectivity to be impaired by auditing an activity for which they have or have had responsibility.

CHARTER - PROFESSIONALISM, ETHICS AND INDEPENDENCE (Continued)

5

P
age 18



Internal Audit, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding records and information, is authorised full, 
free, and unrestricted access to any and all of the organisation's records, physical properties, and personnel pertinent to 
carrying out any engagement. 

All employees are requested to assist Internal Audit in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities. This is enforced in the Accounts 
and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 section 5(2-3) that state that: Any officer or member of a relevant authority must, if 
required to do so for the purposes of the internal audit:

2) (a) make available such documents and records; and

(b) supply such information and explanations; as are considered necessary by those conducting the internal audit.

(3)  in this regulation “documents and records” includes information recorded in an electronic form.

In addition, Internal Audit, through the HoDAP, where deemed necessary, will have unrestricted access to:  
• The Chief Executive
• Members 
• individual Directors
• Section 151 Officer
• Monitoring Officer 
• All authority employees 
• All authority premises.

6

CHARTER - AUTHORITY

P
age 19



Devon Audit Partnership is a shared service established and managed via a Partnership Committee and Board with 
representation from each founding partner. The Partnership operates as a separate entity from the client authorities and 
Internal Audit is therefore independent of the activities which it audits. This ensures unbiased judgements essential to 
proper conduct and the provision of impartial advice to management. DAP operates within a framework that allows: 
• Unrestricted access to senior management and members; 
• Reporting in its own name; 
• and Separation from line operations

Every effort will be made to preserve objectivity by ensuring that all audit members of audit staff are free from any conflicts 
of interest and do not, ordinarily, undertake any non-audit duties.
The HoDAP fulfils the role of Chief Audit Executive at the Authority and will confirm to the Audit Committee, at least 

annually, the organisational independence of the internal audit activity. The Section 151 Officer will liaise with the HoDAP 
and is therefore responsible for monitoring performance and ensuring independence.

The HoDAP reports functionally to the Audit Committee on items such as:  
• Approving the internal audit charter;
• Approving the risk based internal audit plan and resources; 
• Receiving reports from the Head of Devon Audit Partnership on the section’s performance against the plan and other matters;
• Approving the Head of Devon Audit Partnership’s annual report’ 
• Approve the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit. 

The HoDAP has direct access to the Audit Committee, and has the opportunity to meet privately with the Audit Committee.

7

CHARTER - ACCOUNTABILITY

P
age 20



The Chief Executive, Directors and other senior officers are responsible for ensuring internal control arrangements are 
sufficient to address the risks facing their services. The HoDAP will provide assurance to the Section 151 Officer regarding 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s financial framework, helping meet obligations under the LGA 1972 Section 
151. 
The HoDAP will provide assurance to the Monitoring Officer in relation to the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of 
governance within the Council helping him/her meet his/her obligations under the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 and the Council’s Constitution. The HoDAP will also work with the Monitoring Officer to ensure the effective 
implementation of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. 

Internal Audit responsibilities include:
• Examining and evaluating the soundness, adequacy and application of the Council’s systems of internal control, risk management and corporate 

governance arrangements;  
• Reviewing the reliability and integrity of financial and operating information and the means used to identify, measure, classify and report such information;
• Reviewing the systems established to ensure compliance with policies, plans, procedures and regulations which could have a significant impact on 

operations;
• Reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence of such assets;
• Investigating alleged fraud and other irregularities referred to the service by management, or concerns of fraud or other irregularities arising from audits, 

where it is considered that an independent investigation cannot be carried out by management;
• Appraising the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed and the quality of performance in carrying out assigned duties 

including Value for Money Studies;
• Working in partnership with other bodies to secure robust internal controls that protect the Council's interests;
• Advising on internal control implications of new systems;
• Providing consulting and advisory services related to governance, risk management and control as appropriate for the organisation; and,
• Reporting significant risk exposures and control issues identified to Audit Committee and to senior management, including fraud risks, governance issues.

8

CHARTER - RESPONSIBILITIES

P
age 21



The PSIAS describe the requirement for the management of the internal audit function. This sets out various criteria that 
the HoDAP (as Chief Audit Executive) must meet, and includes:

• Be appropriately qualified;
• Determine the priorities of, deliver and manage the Council’s internal audit service through a risk based annual audit 

plan; 
• Regularly liaise with the Council’s external auditors to ensure that scarce audit resources are used effectively;
• Include in the plan the approach to using other sources of assurance if appropriate;
• Be accountable, report and build a relationship with the Council’s Audit Committee and S.151 Officer; and
• Monitor and report upon the effectiveness of the service delivered and compliance with professional and ethical 

standards. 

These criteria are brought together in an Audit Strategy which explains how the service will be delivered and reflect the 
resources and skills required.

The HoDAP is required to give an annual audit opinion on the governance, risk and control framework based on the audit 
work done.

The HoDAP should also have the opportunity for free and unfettered access to the Chief Executive and meet periodically 
with the Monitoring Officer and S.151 Officer to discuss issues that may impact on the Council’s governance, risk and 
control framework and agree any action required.

9

CHARTER - MANAGEMENT

P
age 22



At least annually, the HoDAP will submit to the Audit Committee a risk-based internal audit plan for review and approval. 
The HoDAP will:
• Develop the annual plan through discussions with senior management based on an understanding of the significant risks of the organisation;
• Submit the plan to the Audit Committee for review and agreement;
• Implement the agreed audit plan;
• Maintain a professional audit staff with sufficient knowledge, skills and experience to carry out the plan and carry out continuous review of the 

development and training needs;
• Maintain a programme of quality assurance and a culture of continuous improvement;

The internal audit plan will include timings as well as budget and resource requirements for the next fiscal year. The Head 
of internal audit will communicate the impact of resource limitations and significant interim changes to senior management 
and the Audit Committee.
Internal Audit resources must be appropriately targeted by assessing the risk, materiality and dependency of the Council’s 
systems and processes. Any significant deviation from the approved Internal Audit plan will be communicated through the 
periodic activity reporting process.
A requirement of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy is that the HoDAP be notified of all suspected or 
detected fraud, corruption or impropriety. All reported irregularities will be investigated in line with established strategies 
and policies. The audit plan will include sufficient resource to undertake proactive anti-fraud work. Internal audit activities 
will be conducted in accordance with Council strategic objectives and established policies / procedures.
Monitoring of internal audit’s processes is carried out on a continuous basis by internal audit management. Council’s 
members and management may rely on the professional expertise of the HoDAP to provide assurance. Periodically, 
independent review may be carried out: for example, through peer reviews; ensuring compliance with the PSIAS is an 
essential approach to such a review. 10

CHARTER - INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND RESOURCES

P
age 23



The primary purpose of Internal Audit reporting is to provide to management an independent and objective opinion on 
governance, the control environment and risk exposure and to prompt management to implement agreed actions.
Internal Audit should have direct access and freedom to report in their own name and without fear or favour to, all officers 
and members, particularly to those charged with governance (the Audit Committee).
A written report will be prepared for every internal audit project and issued to the appropriate manager accountable for 
the activities under review.  Reports will include an ‘opinion’ on the risk and adequacy of controls in the area that has been 
audited, which, together, will form the basis of the annual audit opinion on the overall control environment.
The aim of every Internal Audit report should be to:
• Give an opinion on the risk and controls of the area under review, building up to the annual opinion on the control environment; and
• Recommend and agree actions for change leading to improvement in governance, risk management, the control environment and performance.

The Manager will be asked to respond to the report within 30 days, although this period can be extended by agreement. 
The response must show what actions have been taken or are planned in relation to each risk or control weakness 
identified. If action is not to be taken, this must also be stated. The HoDAP is responsible for assessing whether the 
manager’s response is adequate. 
Where deemed necessary, the Internal Audit report will be subject to a follow-up, normally within six months of its issue, in 
order to ascertain whether the action stated by management in their response to the report has been implemented.  
The HoDAP will: 
• Submit periodic reports to the Audit Committee summarising key findings of reviews and the results of follow-ups undertaken;
• Submit an Annual Internal Audit Report to the Audit Committee, incorporating an opinion on the Council’s control environment. This will also inform the 

Annual Governance Statement.

11

CHARTER - INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING

P
age 24



The Council’s Audit Committee will act as “the Board” as defined in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS),
The Specific Functions of the Audit Committee are set out in the Council’s Constitution (Part 2 Article 9 – Audit 
Committee).
The HoDAP will assist the Committee in being effective and in meeting its obligations. To facilitate this, the HoDAP will:
• Attend meetings, and contribute to the agenda;
• Ensure that it receives, and understands, documents that describe how Internal Audit will fulfil its objectives (e.g. the 

Audit Strategy, annual work programmes, progress reports);
• report the outcomes of internal audit work, in sufficient detail to allow the committee to understand what assurance it 

can take from that work and/or what unresolved risks or issues it needs to address;
• establish if anything arising from the work of the committee requires consideration of changes to the audit plan, and 

vice versa; 
• present an annual report on the effectiveness of the system of internal audit; and
• present an annual internal audit report including an overall opinion on the governance, risk and control framework

Any instances of non conformance with the Internal Audit Definition, Code of Conduct or the Standards must be reported 
to the Audit Committee, and in significant cases consideration given to inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement. 

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership will advise the Audit Committee on behalf of the Council on the content of the 
Charter and the need for any subsequent amendment. The Charter should be approved and regularly reviewed by the 
Audit Committee.

CHARTER - RELATIONSHIP WITH THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, AND 

NON CONFORMANCE TO THE CHARTER

12

P
age 25



The PSIAS states that a quality assurance and improvement programme must be developed; the programme should be 
informed by both internal and external assessments.

An external assessment must be conducted at least once in five years by a suitably qualified, independent assessor. For 
DAP this was recently conducted at the end of 2021 by the Head of Southwest London Audit Partnership, and the Chief 
Internal Auditor of Orbis (a partnership organisation covering Brighton and Hove, East Sussex, and Surrey County Council).  

The assessment result was that “Based on the work carried out, it is our overall opinion that DAP generally conforms* with 
the Standards and the Code of Ethics”. 

The report noted that “As a result of our work, a small number of areas where partial conformance was identified. These 
were minor observations, none of which were significant enough to affect the overall opinion”. DAP is actively addressing 
these improvement areas. 

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a charter, policies and 
processes that are judged to be in conformance to the Standards

13

CHARTER - QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

P
age 26



The PSIAS require the HoDAP to produce an Audit Charter setting out audits purpose, authority and responsibility. We 
deliver this through our Audit Strategy which:
• Is a high-level statement of how the internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the 

Charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities; 
• Should be approved, but not directed, by the Audit Committee.
• Will communicate the contribution that Internal Audit makes to the organisation and should include:

➢ Internal audit objectives and outcomes;
➢ How the HoDAP will form and evidence his opinion on the governance, risk and control framework to support the 

Annual Governance Statement;
➢ How Internal Audit’s work will identify and address significant local and national issues and risks;
➢ How the service will be provided, and
➢ The resources and skills required to deliver the Strategy.

The Strategy should be kept up to date with the organisation and its changing priorities.

14

AUDIT STRATEGY - PURPOSE

P
age 27



A key objective of Internal Audit is to communicate to management an independent and objective opinion on the 
governance, risk and control framework, and to prompt management to implement agreed actions.

Significant issues and risks will be brought to the attention of the S.151 Officer as and when they arise. Regular formal 
meetings will be held to discuss issues arising and other matters.

The HoDAP will report progress against the annual audit plan and any emerging issues and risks to the Audit Committee. 
The HoDAP will also provide a written annual report to the Audit Committee, timed to support their recommendation to 
approve the Annual Governance Statement, to the Council.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership’s annual report to the Audit Committee will:

• Provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk and control framework;
• Disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the qualification;
• Present a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived, including reliance placed on work by other assurance streams;
• Draw attention to any issues the HoDAP judges particularly relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement;
• Compare audit work actually undertaken against the work that was planned and summarise the performance of the internal audit 

function against its performance measures and targets; and
• Comment on compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and communicate the results of the internal audit quality 

assurance programme.

AUDIT STRATEGY - OPINION ON THE GOVERNANCE, RISK AND 

CONTROL FRAMEWORK

15

P
age 28



The audit planning process includes the creation of and ongoing revision of an “audit universe”. This seeks to identify all 
risks, systems and processes that may be subject to an internal audit review.

The audit universe will include a risk assessment scoring methodology that takes account of a number of factors including: 
the Council’s own risk score; value of financial transactions; level of change, impact on the public; political sensitivity; 
when last audited; and the impact of an audit. This will inform the basis of the resources allocated to each planned audit 
area.

The results from the audit universe will be used in creating an annual audit plan; such a plan will take account of emerging 
risks at both local and national level.

Assignment Planning & Delivery

Further planning and risk assessment is required at the commencement of each individual audit assignment to establish 
the scope of the audit and the level of testing required.

The primary objective of the audit is to provide management with an independent opinion on the risk and control 
framework through individual audits in the audit plan. Individual audits will be completed using our methodology in our 
Audit Manual to the standards set by PSIAS, to independently evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls. Our audit 
assignment report will communicate our opinion and include agreed management action, where required, to improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.

16

AUDIT STRATEGY - PLANNING & AUDIT DELIVERY
INCLUDING LOCAL AND NATIONAL ISSUES AND RISKS

P
age 29



The PSIAS state that the HoDAP should have in place an internal performance management and quality assurance 
framework; this framework must include:
• A comprehensive set of targets to measure performance. These should be regularly monitored and the progress against these targets 

reported appropriately;
• Seeking user feedback for each individual audit and periodically for the whole service;
• A periodic review of the service against the Strategy and the achievement of its aims and objectives. The results of this should inform 

the future Strategy and be reported to the Audit Committee;
• Internal quality reviews to be undertaken periodically to ensure compliance with the PSIAS and the Audit Manual (self-assessment); 

and
• An action plan to implement improvements.

The PSIAS and the Internal Audit Manual state that internal audit performance, quality and effectiveness should be 
assessed for each individual audit; and for the Internal Audit Service as a whole. The HoDAP will closely monitor the 
performance of the team to ensure agreed targets are achieved. A series of performance indicators have been developed 
for this purpose (please see the following pages).

Customer feedback is also used to define and refine the audit approach. Devon Audit Partnership will seek feedback from:
auditees; senior leadership; and executive management. The results from our feedback will be reported to Senior 
Management and the Audit Committee in the half year and annual reports. 

The HoDAP is expected to ensure that the performance and the effectiveness of the service improves over time, in terms 
of both the achievement of targets and the quality of the service provided to the user.

17

AUDIT STRATEGY - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT & QUALITY ASSURANCE

P
age 30



AUDIT STRATEGY - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT & QUALITY ASSURANCE (2)

18

Task Performance measure

Agreement of Annual audit plan Agreed by Chief Executive, Leadership Team and Audit Committee prior to start of financial year

Agreement of assignment brief Assignment briefs are agreed with and provided to auditee at least two weeks before planned
commencement date.

Undertake audit fieldwork Fieldwork commenced at agreed time

Verbal debrief Confirm this took place as expected; was a useful summary of the key issues; reflects the findings in the
draft report.

Draft report Promptly issued within 15 days of finishing our fieldwork.
Report is “accurate” and recommendations are both workable and useful.

Draft report meeting (if required) Such a meeting was useful in understanding the audit issues

Annual internal audit report Prepared promptly and ready for senior management consideration by end of May.
Report accurately reflects the key issues identified during the year.

Presentation of internal audit report
to Management and Audit Committee.

Presentation was clear and concise.
Presented was knowledgeable in subject are and able to answer questions posed by management /
members.

Contact with the audit team outside of
assignment work.

You were successfully able to contact the person you needed, or our staff directed you correctly to the
appropriate person. Emails, letters, telephone calls are dealt with promptly and effectively.

Performance Indicator Full year target 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed 90%

Customer Satisfaction - % satisfied or very satisfied as per feedback forms 90%

Draft reports produced with target number of days (currently 15 days) 90%

Final reports produced within target number of days (currently 10 days) 90%

Internal Audit  
Performance 
Monitoring 
Targets

Other indicators 
measured as part 
of the audit 
process that will be 
captured and 
reported to senior 
management

P
age 31



The PSIAS and the Audit Manual states that:
• Internal Audit must be appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, grades, qualifications and experience, having regard to its

responsibilities and objectives, or have access to the appropriate resources;
• The Internal Audit service shall be managed by an appropriately qualified professional with wide experience of internal audit and of its 

management; and
• The Chief Audit Executive (Head of Devon Audit Partnership) should be of the calibre reflecting the responsibilities arising from the 

need to liaise with members, senior management and other professionals, and be suitably experienced.

DAP currently has c.40 staff who operate from any one of our three main locations (Plymouth, Torquay and Exeter), we 
also operate from offices at Torridge DC (Bideford), Mid Devon DC (Tiverton) and South Hams/West Devon Councils 
(Totnes). The Partnership employs a number of specialists in areas such as Computer Audit, Contracts Audit and Counter 
Fraud Investigators as well as a mix of experienced, professionally qualified and non-qualified staff.
The Partnership draws on a range of skilled staff to meet the audit needs. Our current staff includes: -
• 4 x Chartered Accountants 
• 7 x qualified IIA (CMIIA and PIIA) 
• 1 x qualified computer audit (QICA & CISA)
• 1 x risk management (IRM)
• 10 x AAT (qualified and part qualified)
• 6 x ACFS / ACFT (accredited counter fraud specialists)
• 5 x ILM (Institute of Leadership & Management) level 5 or above
• 5 Apprentices (Finance, Data Analyst, IIA, Business Admin)

19

AUDIT STRATEGY - RESOURCES AND SKILLS

P
age 32



Staff Skills and Development
Devon Audit Partnership management assess the skills of staff to ensure the right people are available to undertake the 
work required.
Staff keep up to date with developments within internal audit by attending seminars, taking part in webinars and 
conferences, attending training events and keeping up to date on topics via websites and professional bodies. Learning 
from these events helps management to ensure they know what skills will be required of our team in the coming years, 
and to plan accordingly.
Devon Audit Partnership follows formal appraisal processes that identify how employees are developing and create 
training and development plans to address needs. 

Internal Audit Software System
Devon Audit Partnership uses Pentana MK as an audit management system. This system allows Partnership management 
to effectively plan, deliver and report audit work in a consistent and efficient manner. The system provides a secure 
working platform and ensures confidentiality of data. The system promotes mobile working, allowing the team to work 
effectively at client locations or at remote locations should the need arise.

20

AUDIT STRATEGY - STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING AND 

USE OF MK AUDIT

P
age 33



Auditor’s Annual Report on 
Torridge District 
Council

2020-21

October  2022

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 9



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Contents

We are required under Section 
20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to 
satisfy ourselves that the 
Council has made proper 
arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of 
resources. The Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the National 
Audit Office (NAO) requires us 
to report to you our 
commentary relating to proper 
arrangements.  

We report if significant 
matters have come to our 
attention. We are not required 
to consider, nor have we 
considered, whether all 
aspects of the Council’s 
arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of 
resources are operating 
effectively.

2

Section Page

Executive Summary 3

Commentary on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources 5

Financial sustainability 6

Governance 16

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 22

Opinion on the financial statements

Appendices

A – The responsibilities of the Council 29

B – Risks of significant weaknesses – our procedures and findings 30

C – An explanatory note on recommendations 31

D – Use of formal auditors’ powers 32

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our 
normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our work under the NAO Code and 
related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for money. However, where, 
as part of our testing, we identify significant weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work 
cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in arrangements that a 
more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to 
any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered 
office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office.  Grant 
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a 
member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide 
partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions

P
age 35



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Executive summary Financial sustainability

Following our review we are satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to 
ensure it manages risks to its financial sustainability. We have not identified any significant 
weaknesses. We have made improvement recommendations with regard to the following:

• realistic savings targets should be agreed and where significant uncertainties exist within 
financial planning, then a scenario analysis should be included within the medium term 
financial plan (MTFS)

• The MTFS should clearly set out the impact of funding gaps on the Council’s strategic priorities

• Identification and implementation of further opportunities to support additional income 
generation, 

• ensuring the financial implications of climate change and the Council’s declaration to become 
carbon neutral by 2030 are identified and monitored and the risks to such programs 
recognised in the Council’s corporate risk register.

• ensuring the Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Review reports contain the budget 
and outturn information where relevant

Further details and managements response is provided on pages 11-15.

3

Value for money arrangements and key 
recommendation(s)

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to 
consider whether the Authority has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are required to report in more detail on 
the Council's overall arrangements, as well as key recommendations on any significant 
weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit. 

2020/21 was an unprecedented year in which the Council operated with many of its staff home 
working whilst supporting local businesses and residents through the pandemic. The Council 
incurred significant budget pressures relating to Covid-19 that included additional waste and 
recycling agency costs, and reductions in income particularly in relation to car parking and leisure 
services. The Council administered £42m in government funded grants to support businesses 
through the pandemic. The 2020/21 General Fund (GF) outturn position was a £1.085m 
underspend against the original budget. The Council has specific reserves at February 2021 of 
£9.4m with an additional £1.084m set aside as General Fund Balance to deal with unforeseen 
events; this represents 11.1% of the Council's net annual revenue budget. Whilst the Council has a 
healthy level of reserves and a strong history of delivering financial targets and savings, the 
financial challenge and uncertainty continues to increase.

We have not identified any significant Value for Money (VFM) weaknesses, but have identified 
thirteen opportunities for improvement which are set out in detail within our report.

Governance

We have not identified any areas of significant weakness in the Council’s governance 
arrangements with regard to managing risk, setting ethical standards, internal control and 
budget monitoring. We have made improvement recommendations with regard to:

• budget reports should distinguish between recurring and non-recurring variances,

• the Council’s Corporate risk register should be mapped to corporate priorities. 

• improving the recording and review of the Gifts and Hospitality Register

Further details and managements response is provided on pages 19-21.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We have not identified any areas of significant weakness in arrangements with regard to 
improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. We have made improvement 
recommendations that the Council should:

• Ensure adequate governance and reporting arrangements are put in place with regard to 
the wholly owned Leisure Company

• Align the workforce plan to its strategic objectives and Medium Term Financial Plan

• benchmark service costs against similar organisations

• create a Data Quality Policy

Further details and managements response is provided on pages 24-27.

Criteria Risk assessment Finding

Financial sustainability A risk of significant weakness was 
identified in relation to revenue and 
capital funding

No significant weaknesses in 
arrangements identified, but five 
improvement recommendations made

Governance No risks of significant weakness 
identified

No significant weaknesses in 
arrangements identified, but three 
improvement recommendations made

Improving economy, 
efficiency and 
effectiveness

No risks of significant weakness 
identified

No significant weaknesses in 
arrangements identified, but three 
improvement recommendations made

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified.

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement 
recommendations made.

Significant weakness in arrangements identified and key recommendation made.

P
age 36



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the 
National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), 
we are required to report whether, in our opinion:

• the Council's financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Council and the Council’s income 
and expenditure for the year;  and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting 
and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to report whether other information 
published together with the audited financial statements, 
including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative 
Report, is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

Our audit work was completed remotely, principally from June to 
December 2021. Full details of our initial findings from the audit 
are reported in our Audit Findings Report dated 27 September 
2021 and updated in our report date 8 July 2022.

No material adjustments were required to the financial 
statements.

We have made recommendations regarding valuations of 
property; the need for robust controls when setting up the 
planned wholly owned Leisure Management Company, and 
improvements to the payroll processes and systems.

4

Opinion on the financial 
statements

P
age 37



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Governance 

Arrangements for ensuring that the 
Council makes appropriate decisions 
in the right way. This includes 
arrangements for budget setting and 
management, risk management, and 
ensuring the Council makes 
decisions based on appropriate 
information.

Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness 

Arrangements for improving the way 
the Council delivers its services.  This 
includes arrangements for 
understanding costs and delivering 
efficiencies and improving outcomes 
for service users.

Commentary on the Council's arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual governance statement.

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, we are required to be satisfied whether the Council has made proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

The National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 03, requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

5

Financial sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring the 
Council can continue to deliver 
services.  This includes  planning 
resources to ensure adequate 
finances and maintain sustainable 
levels of spending over the medium 
term (3-5 years).

All Councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness from their
resources.  This includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their 
objectives and safeguard public money. The Council’s responsibilities are set out in Appendix A.

Our commentary on each of these three areas, as well as the impact of Covid-19, is set out on 
pages 6 to 26. Further detail on how we approached our work is included in Appendix B at page 29 .

P
age 38



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

We considered how the Council:

• responded to the financial challenges 
posed by the Covid-19 pandemic

• identifies all the significant financial  
pressures it is facing and builds these into 
its plans

• plans to bridge its funding gaps and 
identify achievable savings

• plans its finances to support the 
sustainable delivery of services in 
accordance with strategic and statutory 
priorities

• ensures its financial plan is consistent 
with other plans such as workforce, 
capital, investment and other operational 
planning

• identifies and manages risk to financial 
resilience, such as unplanned changes in 
demand and assumptions underlying its 
plans.

As a result of  our work on our Audit Findings 
Report we identified in the audit plan a risk of 
significant weakness in relation to Financial 
Sustainability.

Financial sustainability

6

Outturn 2020/21

The 2020/21 General Fund (GF) outturn position was a £1.085m underspend against the original budget. The Council’s GF reserve at the start of 
the year was £1.084m and earmarked reserves £8.908m. Whilst the Council has a healthy level of reserves and a strong history of delivering 
financial targets and savings, the financial challenge and uncertainty continue to increase, as it does for all in the sector.

This outturn position reflects financial pressures associated with the pandemic including £0.5m in reduced car parking income, and a £0.4m 
reduction in business rates. These variances were more than offset however as the Council received significant financial support from the 
government to fund the financial pressures resulting from the pandemic, including £1.2m in general Covid-19 support grant and £0.4m in 
compensation for lost sales, fees and charges. There was also an increase in planning income of £0.6m compared to budget.

The Council identified a substantial backlog of maintenance within the Council’s leisure facilities, estimated at £750k. Furthermore the current 
outsourced leisure contract was due to end in March 2022, and it was envisaged that the Council would incur significant mobilisation costs for 
either of the options on the table: run the leisure facilities through a wholly owned company or bring the operation in-house. On this basis the 
entire surplus for 2020/21 was set aside in anticipation of these additional costs.

Covid-19 arrangements

No significant weaknesses in arrangements have been identified, however, the Council distributed £26.3m of government funded business 
support grants during the year. Given the value of grants the possibility of fraudulent grant applications led to a Post Payment Assurance Plan 
implementing Grant Fraud Checks. Additional work was also provided by Internal Audit who gave a ‘Reasonable Assurance’ level on the 
adequacy of the Council’s internal control framework for 2020/21. 

As already noted, the Council has seen its income fall in areas such as: Car Parking and Business rates. The financial year 2020/21 also saw 
unprecedented demand (and income) for the Council’s planning and land charges services. As noted above despite these challenges the Council 
made a surplus on revenue in 2020/21  of £1.085m against the original budget. 

P
age 39



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

There was good scrutiny from Members during the budget setting process. Draft budget proposals 
were considered by the Community and Resources Committee in January 2021 prior to the final 
budget being approved by Full Council in February 2021. As the Council develops a more strategic 
approach to identifying savings to balance the budget, it should ensure that relevant stakeholders 
are consulted in order to identify priorities for resource allocation and the impacts of service 
reduction. An Improvement Recommendation has been included in this respect.

Overall we found no evidence of significant weaknesses in the Council’s budget setting 
arrangements.

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

The MTFS includes assumptions around New Homes Bonus, business rate income, council tax 
increases, fees and charges, pay increases and borrowing costs.

Pay pressures were initially forecast at realistic levels.

At the time of setting the MTFS in February 2020, there was no indication as to whether the Covid-19 
Business Rate reliefs will continue into 2021/22. Minimal growth was therefore projected on the 
Council’s Business Rate base over the life of the MTFS.

Due to uncertainties around the timing and impact of funding reforms, the December 2020 MTFS 
still does not model potential reductions in business rate income over the four year period and 
therefore assumes that the business rate income will be maintained. 

Our review of the Council’s MTFS indicates that financial planning is based on realistic assumptions, 
although annual settlements and the delay of the fair funding review and business rate reset have 
made financial planning more difficult. 

The Council has been realistic in acknowledging the financial challenges which lie ahead but to date 
has still not formulated firm plans for how these will be sustainably addressed in the medium term. 

7

Budget 2021/22

In Feb 2021 the 2021/22 budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for the period to 2025-
26, identified a gap of £1.4m that will be funded from reserves. The Council has also identified the 
need to identify £5.7m of additional funding, through to 2025/26 to deliver its £26.9m capital 
programme. 

The Council has been in a fortunate position where it has achieved a surplus in budget and this has 
enabled the Council to avoid difficult decisions in the short term. As a result the Council has not had 
to put in place structured savings plans previously and should consider what systems and processes 
it will need to put in place in order to support any difficult choices required to achieve financial 
sustainability in the longer term. We have made an improvement recommendation in this respect 
through this report.

The 2021/22 budget was set based on the funding announced in the local government finance 
settlement. This introduced additional measures to support councils through their recovery from the 
pandemic, such as another tranche of general Covid-19 funding, additional sales, fees and charges 
(SFC) compensation grant, and a new one-off tranche of New Homes Bonus grant. The Council 
included the £0.4m Covid-19 support grant in the base budget. 

Funding within the budget also includes a 2.96% or £5 increase in council tax in accordance with 
referendum principles.

New Homes Bonus has reduced significantly from £1.189 in 2019/20, to £381,453 in 2021/22 
increasing budgetary pressures. 

The amount of business rates to be collected from businesses within Torridge fell from £12m to circa 
£4.5m in 2020/21; with the Council being compensated for the income not being collected by 
Section 31 grant monies. The budget report for 2021/22 provides a clear and detailed narrative on 
the key budget assumptions, risks and uncertainties, and the minimum level of unallocated reserves.

Financial sustainability (cont’d)

P
age 40



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

The Council has established an income generation working group, with the aim to ensure that the 
council is commercially aware, and adopts a more entrepreneurial approach to investment 
strategies. The Council is still yet to identify major initiatives in this respect and there have been no 
proposals put forward by officers. There is no evidence that the Council has looked outside its own 
boundary to see what could be learned from other Councils in this respect.

The Council is also currently developing a Carbon, Environment and Biodiversity Plan which will have 
an impact on the capital programme, and capital strategy resulting in extra costs and commitments. 
These additional costs and commitments have not been quantified at this time. As part of financial 
planning the Council will need to ensure that it identifies and models the financial implications of 
climate change and the Council’s declaration to become carbon neutral by 2030. The risks to such 
programs should be fully recognised in the Council’s corporate risk register. We have included a 
recommendation through this report.

The 2021/22 budget is not heavily reliant on achieving service savings to balance the overall financial 
position. The February 2021 budget report confirms that the 2021/22 budget provides for broadly 
the current level of service provision to continue.

Subsequently the MTFS reported to Full 21st February 2022 projected that the Council's budget 
would not come back into balance by 2026-27. Potential funding pressures of circa £3.5m have been 
identified.

We have found no evidence of significant weakness in the Council’s financial planning arrangements. 
Improvement recommendations have been identified to further strengthen arrangements in relation 
to ensuring savings targets are set and monitored and opportunities for commercial income streams 
are identified.

Capital strategy and treasury management

The Council approved the Capital Programme, Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy 
for 2020/21 in during February 2020 and reviewed again in February 2021 for 2021/22. These 
documents set out the Council’s capital expenditure, capital financing, minimum revenue provision 
and borrowing projections. The February 2021 review updated the Treasury Management and 
Investment Strategy to prioritise “Green treasury Deposits.

8

The Council holds a Transition in Government Funding reserve which it plans to utilise to balance the 
revenue budgets until such time as savings or additional revenue streams are identified. The balance 
on the Transition in Government funding reserve as at Feb 2021 was £1.2m. The MTFS shows that 
these reserves will be exhausted by 2023-24 unless remedial action is taken. The recommendations 
set out in the MTFS were implemented regarding increasing carpark income and green waste, thus 
preserving an element of the Transition in Government funding reserve, to protect against future 
uncertainty. The budget gap at that time was £0.105m in 2021-22 rising to £0.278m in 2022-23. 

The Council has identified a number of pressures and anticipated savings within the 2021-22 budget 
however no structured medium term savings plans have been formulated or considered by 
members. 

Financial gaps have been identified by the Council however it is concerning that there is a lack of 
robust plans to address the gaps. In setting the 2020-21  budget the Council considered three ways 
to address the gap: increased charges; stopping discretionary services, and reducing levels of service 
for mandatory services. The Council has not considered other efficiency savings or identified 
additional more commercial opportunities for increasing income. The impact of the financial gaps on 
the delivery of the Council's strategic aims is not clear as there is no reference to the Council's 
strategic aims in the budget papers. The Director of Finance acknowledges this and intends to align 
future MTFP with the potential impact on strategic priorities. We have raised an improvement 
recommendation in this respect through this report.

The Council has rarely if ever had to develop formal savings plans in order to balance the budget and 
therefore arrangements for approving and monitoring such savings plans need to be put in place. 
We have made an improvement recommendation that the Council should ensure that realistic 
savings targets are agreed for inclusion within the MTFS. When setting savings targets it should be 
ensured that they are sufficient to bridge the gaps identified in the MTFS, even if there is slippage to 
the plan. Savings targets should be separately identified and monitored using Red, Amber, Green 
(RAG) ratings during the financial reporting cycle.  

When setting and monitoring the budget, the distinction between discretionary and core spend is 
not clear. Highlighting core and discretionary spend would enable the Council to better consider the 
discretionary nature of some costs when deciding whether to continue with the delivery of such 
services. An improvement recommendation in this respect is included in this report

Financial sustainability (cont’d)

P
age 41



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

9

No new long-term loans were taken out with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) during 2020/21. It 
was envisaged that borrowings from PWLB at 31 March 2021 will total £0.661m. The next scheduled 
redemption will occur in March 2022 when a maturity type loan of £0.191m will be settled. There are 
3 fixed interest rate loans outstanding totalling £0.470m with redemption dates that run from March 
2024 to March 2027.  

On 31st March 2021 short-term investments placed with financial institutions were estimated to be 
approximately £10m. The bulk of this amount represents the balances on Reserves and Usable 
Capital Receipts.

The Council envisaged that substantial further long-term borrowing of £1.6m in the year 2021/22 
relating to a new Environmental Centre. This will bring total estimated borrowing in 2021/22 to 
£6.6m. 

Treasury Management reports were considered by the Council’s Internal Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  Each quarter that Committee considered the Council’s ethical investment policy. In 
August 2020 Full Council received an annual Treasury Management report for 2019-20  and a mid-
year review of Treasury Management 2020-21 was received in December 2020. A Counterparty limit 
with Lloyds bank was breached but only as a result of the Council holding funds provided by Central 
government for the distribution of Covid-19 support grants to local businesses. The Council does not 
currently have significant levels of income from commercial activities. The current Treasury 
Management Policy is limited in the funds it allows for investment. 

Commercial investment by local authorities has been under increasing scrutiny from HM Treasury 
and CIPFA. The PWLB introduced new lending terms in November 2020 which support borrowing for 
Council functions, including housing and regeneration. Councils cannot access PWLB funding if they 
have investments purely for yield in their 3-year capital programmes. CIPFA, through the revised 
Prudential Code published in December 2021, have confirmed that commercial investments funded 
from borrowing are not regarded as prudent activity for Councils to undertake. Going forward if the 
Council considers further commercial activity they will need to ensure that they are not investing in 
assets purely for yield in order to ensure compliance with the Prudential Code and continued access 
to PWLB funds. If the Council increases its external and internal borrowing it should ensure that 
financing costs are reflected in the revenue budget.

The Council’s Community and Resources Committee received cashflow updates as part of 
broader financial impacts reports in June and Sept 2020.  More detailed cash flow reporting was 
also provided to Full Council and the Executive as part of budget setting and final outturn 
reporting. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period  increased from £4.9m in 
2019/20 to £10.5m in 2020/21. This was largely driven by an increase in cash equivalents 
explained by the Central Government business support grants not spent by the Council as at 31 
March 2021

The Council’s capital expenditure plans for the remaining years of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and capital programme amounted to £26.1 million. New capital bids are scrutinised and 
existing plans reviewed however it is not always clear how decisions are aligned to strategic 
priorities.

In Feb 2021 the Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) was forecast to increase from 
£1.04m to £7.3m in 2021/22 before falling slightly to just under £7m for future years. An increase 
in internal borrowing is also forecast over this period.

Financial sustainability (cont’d)

P
age 42



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

The Annual Treasury Management Review 2020/21 reports the return from short term investments 
in 2020/21 was £31,000 compared with a return of £116,000 in 2019/20. This reduction was due to 
cuts in the Bank of England Base rates as well as the Council focusing on short-term low interest 
investments in order to manage cash-flow pressures caused by Covid-19. The annual report does not 
compare this outturn position to the budget so that performance can be measured. We have made 
an improvement recommendation that the Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Review 
reports should contain the budget and outturn information where relevant. 

We have found no evidence of significant weakness in the Council’s capital and treasury 
arrangements. 

Reserves and risk mitigation

The Council has historically demonstrated a prudent approach to setting the budget which has 
enabled the Council to build its reserves. 

The Council has specific reserves at February 2021 of £9.4m with an additional £1.084m set aside as 
General Fund Balance to deal with unforeseen events. This represents 11.1% of the Council's net 
annual revenue budget. The Council has set aside a further £1.2m funds into a Transition in 
Government Funding Reserve to meet in the short term the impact of the identified funding gap 
however this is not stainable in the long term The MTFS shows that these reserves will be exhausted 
by 2023-24 unless remedial action is taken. 

Although the full impact of the pandemic over the life of the MTFS was unknown the Council 
believed that its relative financial strength would be sufficient to maintain its financial sustainability 
over the medium term. 

The budget for the capital programme for the year 2020/21 was £11.105m. During the year, capital 
expenditure amounted to £2.942m funded by a combination of capital receipts, external grants and 
utilisation of earmarked capital reserves. The Council was unsuccessful in its bid for the Future High 
Street Fund (£9.687m) and therefore this project was removed from the Capital Programme. The 
Council has identified the need to identify £5.7m of additional funding, through to 2025/26 to 
deliver its £26.9m capital programme.

We have undertaken our own financial benchmarking of the Council when compared to its statistical 
nearest neighbours. The Council is ranked 6 out 8 in terms of Uncommitted (or non-earmarked) 
General Fund reserves as a % of net annual expenditure. The graph opposite shows the level of 
reserves over time. This shows a reduction in earmarked reserves over the last two financial years. 
The Council should continue to review the level of reserves it holds in order to ensure that they are 
adequate to mitigate financial risk, and that the Council can respond to unforeseen budget variances 
without impacting on its ability to deliver corporate priorities.  

10

Financial sustainability (cont’d)

We have found no evidence of significant weakness with regard to the Council’s reserves 
strategy and mitigation of risk

Conclusion

We identified financial sustainability as a significant risk in planning this work. Following our review we are 
satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to ensure it manages risks to its financial 
sustainability. We have not identified any significant weaknesses. 

However, we recognise that the COVID-19 support provided by government will cease and this, combined 
with the need to manage more significant funding gaps in 2022/23 and 2023/24, will present a bigger 
challenge for the Council. This includes increased levels of savings required in these years, as well as the 
inevitable increased strain on services due to the cost of living crisis. Continued close in year monitoring 
and timely corrective action will be required to ensure savings are delivered and service redesign with 
partners are successfully implemented.  

We have identified five opportunities for improvement which are set out on the following pages.

P
age 43



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Financial sustainability

11

1 Recommendation The Council should ensure that realistic savings targets are agreed for inclusion within the MTFS which 
incorporate an element of headroom for if there is slippage to the plan. Savings targets should be 
separately identified and monitored using Red Amber Green (RAG) ratings during the financial reporting 
cycle. Discretionary and Core expenditure should also be clearly identified in financial plans and budget 
monitoring to aid decision making. Relevant stakeholders should be identified and consulted on any 
proposed savings and/or reduction in services.

Why/impact Balancing the budget without reducing services is becoming increasingly difficult and the Council needs to 
ensure a strategic approach to savings and resource allocation.
Highlighting core and discretionary spend  would enable the Council to better consider the discretionary 
nature of some costs when deciding whether to continue with the delivery of such services. It would also 
provide greater transparency to the public.

Summary findings Budget reports presented to Cabinet as part of the 2021/22 budget setting process recognise that a 
strategic approach to identifying savings is required to balance the financial position. 
The Council had not developed any firm savings plans, and was reluctant to further raise prices on areas 
of discretionary income e.g. car parking and commercial lets.  When setting and monitoring the budget 
the distinction between discretionary and core spend is not clear. 

Management 
comment

The Council created a Member Budget Working Group (MBWG) to formulate proposals to bring the 
budgets back into balance. The initial proposals were reported to Full Council on  5

th
Sept 2022, and 

accepted. The savings amounting to £479k for 23/24 raising to £704k for 26/27.  The Council reported the 
key areas of discretionary spend when updating the MTFS on the 5

th
Sept 2022.  Management does not 

intend to separate discretionary spend from statutory spend as part of its budget monitoring process.
In  21/22 a new Quarterly Budget Reporting format was agreed with Members which did not include 
separation of Discretionary and Statutory spend. It should be noted that it is not straight forward to 
separate all expenditure between Discretionary and Statutory; for example grounds maintenance covers 
both  parks (discretionary) and cemeteries (statutory).

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 44



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Financial sustainability

12

2 Recommendation The Council should identify and implement further commercial opportunities to support additional 
income generation.

Why/impact The Council needs to take a more entrepreneurial approach to income generation

Summary findings The Council only considered three ways to address the gap: increased charges; stopping discretionary 
services, and reducing levels of service for mandatory services.  The Council has not considered other 
efficiency savings or identified additional more commercial opportunities for increasing income. This was 
a criticism in the 2017 Peer Review which has still not been addressed.

Management 
comment

In the 2021/22 budget setting the Members approved increases in car parking and green waste charges 
over three years with a view to bringing the Environment Centre online in order to bring the recycling in-
house thereby generating further income. 

The MBWG has identified areas of increasing income for the Council and will continue to do so going 
forward. For example the MBWG recommended changes to the Council’s Treasury Management Policy to 
allow increased counter party limits to access greater financial returns.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 45



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Financial sustainability

13

3 Recommendation The Director of Finance should align future MTFS with the potential impact on strategic priorities. 

Why/impact There is a risk that the Council will not be in a position to deliver its strategic priorities.

Summary findings The impact of the financial gaps on the delivery of the Council's strategic aims is not clearly set out.

Management 
comment

Agreed the MTFS will going forward make more direct reference to the Council’s Strategic Plan.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 46



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Financial sustainability

14

4 Recommendation As part of financial planning the Council  should ensure that it identifies and models the financial 
implications of the Council’s declaration to become carbon neutral by 2030. The risks to such programs 
should be fully recognised in the Council’s corporate risk register.

Why/impact There is a risk that the Council will not be in a position to deliver its strategic priorities.

Summary findings Current financial plans currently do not model the financial implications of climate change and the 
Council’s declaration to become carbon neutral by 2030. The risks to such programs should be fully 
recognised in the Council’s corporate risk register. We have included a recommendation through this 
report.

Management 
comment

Management does not agree with this recommendation.  As individual climate schemes come to light 
their funding and financing implications will be analysed. Any failure of the Council to become carbon 
neutral by 2030 is reputational, there are no financial penalties accruing to the Council for not achieving 
this target.  The work to cost up how much resources would be required for the Council to go Carbon 
Neutral would be very substantial and provide minimal added value. 

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 47



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Financial sustainability

15

5 Recommendation The Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Review reports should contain the budget and outturn 
information where relevant. 

Why/impact The current reports do not compare outturn position to the budget and so performance cannot be 
measured.

Summary findings The Annual Treasury Management Review 2020/21 reports The return from short term investments in 
2020/21 was £31,000 compared with a return of £116,000 in 2019/20. This reduction was due to cuts in 
the Bank of England Base rates. The report does not compare this outturn position to the budget so that 
performance can be measured.

Management 
comment

Management does  not agree, Treasury Management performance is compared to prior financial year 
and accompanying narrative provides reference (e.g. changes to interest rates etc)

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 48



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

We considered how the Council:

• considered the impact of Covid-19 on the governance 
arrangements

• monitors and assesses risk and gains assurance over 
the effective operation of internal controls, including 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud 

• approaches and carries out its annual budget setting 
process 

• ensures effectiveness processes and systems are in 
place to ensure budgetary control 

• ensures it makes properly informed decisions, 
supported by appropriate evidence and allowing for 
challenge and transparency

• monitors and ensures appropriate standards.

COVID-19 arrangements

During the 2020/21 financial year the Council supported the community, businesses and the delivery of critical services through the 
pandemic, and adapted governance arrangements as required. Council and Committee meetings were held remotely throughout the 
year, allowing public accessibility as well as Council business to continue. The majority of Council staff were required to work from home 
during the pandemic, 10 officers were furloughed and others redeployed in order to maintain vital services including assisting with 
Waste and Parking issues.

In August 2020 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee received a special report setting out a Covid-19 Initial Impact Analysis for the 
period March-June 2020. These updates included the progress on delivering grants to support local businesses, reopening public 
conveniences and communal enclosed spaces safely. The report did not set out the financial impacts of Covid-19.

As already mentioned the Council distributed £26.3m of government funded business support grants during the year. £50,000 was paid 
out to support Voluntary and Community Groups. The Council was also allocated £85,000 from Devon County Council to support the 
economically vulnerable.  It was reported that in total 7,700 people had been furloughed across Torridge and 3,800 claims for self 
employment support with a value of £10.6m.

The Audit and Governance Committee received updates from officers as to the progress in making the payments, the controls in 
operation and the risk of potential fraudulent payments. Processes were put in place to obtain sufficient information to confirm an 
application was eligible before payments were made. The Spotlight assurance system was used for prepayment checking and the 
National Fraud Initiative tool was used for post payment verification, in order to identify potential fraud.  The Devon Audit Partnership 
(the Council’s internal audit provider) also reviewed the system for processing Covid-19 business grants, giving a reasonable assurance 
opinion. The Council put in place adequate arrangements to prevent fraudulent payments, while ensuring that businesses received 
prompt financial support.

The Devon Audit Partnership adapted their audit approach in order to be able to provide an annual assurance opinion to the Council for 
2020/21, with the focus on assurance mapping to understand risk and controls. The internal audit plan was revised to include specific 
areas of Covid-19 risk such as the award of business grants and reviewing the safety of staff operations.

Governance

16

P
age 49



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Delivery against the plan was further affected by the pandemic as officer time was focused on front 
line service delivery and supporting the wider community. As a consequence, six planned audits 
were deferred to a future year. DAP audited 88% of Key System Audits. The audit work that has been 
completed in 2020/21 has mainly been achieved via remote working. 

During 2020/21, core financial and administrative systems were reviewed by Internal Audit through 
specific reviews. DAP also reviewed practices related to the Covid-19 response (e.g. Grant payments) 
and have concluded that a ‘Reasonable Assurance’ level  on the adequacy of the Council’s internal 
control framework for 2020/21. 

There have been no identified frauds (other than benefit claims) within the Council. During the year 
the DAP Partnership Manager concluded that overall systems at Torridge are effective however 
Torridge  must ensure that they do not get complacent as the risk of fraud will always be there.

Under the Constitution, the Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer, and appointed external 
auditor are required to attend the Audit Committee. These Officers also have access to the 
committee, or chair, as required. The Constitution requires members of the Audit and Governance 
Committee to be properly trained. There is a good level of challenge from this committee which 
would indicate the information provided has been scrutinised. The Committee met the planned four 
times in 2020/21. From our work we have found no areas of significant weakness in the 
management and reporting on internal control.

Senior Managers provide annual Assurance Statements and an annual review of governance 
arrangements is undertaken.

An Internal Audit report in 2019 highlighted weaknesses in existing arrangements for Payroll, 
including weaknesses in the leavers process and duplication of effort and data between Payroll and 
HR systems. Although not the primary driver for change these weaknesses were addressed with the 
implementation of a new Payroll system iTrent which went live in April 2020. 

In the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement an issue was identified regarding the lack of an up-to-
date Asset Management Plan (AMP). That work is still outstanding. A new senior manager with 
responsibility for the Council’s asset portfolio is due to start in June 2021 and one of the post’s first 
tasks will be to review and update the AMP. 

17

Managing risk

The Council’s Risk Management Policy is approved annually by the Audit and Governance 
Committee. Internal Audit carried out an audit of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements for 
2020/21 and provided ‘Reasonable Assurance’ concluding that there was generally sound system of 
governance, risk management and control in place.

The Council has a Risk Management Strategy and its risk appetite is described as cautious. The 
Council maintains a corporate risk register. The corporate risk register is reviewed by Risk 
Management Group and reported to the Audit and Governance Committee on a quarterly basis. 
Verbal updates only are provided. Service level risk registers have been incorporated into the 
Business Planning process so they are reviewed in tandem on an annual basis. Workforce 
information and performance against strategic priorities are reported as part of the Quarterly 
Business Reports (QBRs) which also includes financial reports however each are reported 
independently.

The risk registers reported to Members include a description of the risk, mitigating actions, and a 
Red, Amber, Green (RAG) rated risk score derived from the severity and likelihood of the risk 
occurring. Risks are assigned to named officers and contain a narrative on the current position. 

Financial risks are reported to Council however the impact of other risks are not linked through to 
financial plans or strategic priorities. The risk register appears to be seen as an output from the 
decision making process rather than as a tool to inform decisions.

From our work we have not identified any significant areas of weakness in the Council’s 
arrangements to manage and report risk. We have made an improvement recommendation that 
risks within the risk register should be mapped to financial plans and corporate priorities to ensure 
that their potential impact on the corporate plan is understood so that risk reporting becomes more 
dynamic and integral to the financial planning process. 

Internal control

Internal audit is undertaken by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). The Internal Audit Strategy and 
Plan for 2020/21 was due to be presented and approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in 
March 2020, however due to the Covid-19 pandemic this meeting was cancelled. The plan as shown 
on the Council website at the time was adopted.

Governance

P
age 50



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

18

Monitoring Standards

The Council has constituted a Standards Committee to promote and monitor compliance with the 
Members' Code of Conduct. The Committee has the power to deal with complaints regarding 
conduct and to impose sanctions. The Composition of the Committee includes 3 independent 
persons. There is evidence of an appropriate culture within the Council to prevent and detect fraud 
and corruption, with the relevant policies in place and subject to regular review. 

A revised Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and Strategy were approved 2019 and is not due for 
further review until 2022. A revised Whistleblowing Policy was approved in July 2020. 

Codes of conduct are in place for both Members and officers and these include the policies relating 
to declarations of interest and gifts and hospitality. The Financial Procedures Rules also contain 
provisions for declaration of Conflicts of Interests specific to contracts for purchase of goods and 
services. A specific review in 2020/21 centred around the Local Government Ethical Standards 
Report and their List of Best Practice Recommendations, resulting in updates to the Member’s Code 
of Conduct.

Member declarations of interest are available on the Council’s website. There were no declarations 
of gifts and hospitality made by Members during the year. We have identified two receipts of officer 
hospitality were recorded for 2020/21 which appear to be outside of the Gifts and Hospitality Policy. 
The Council should ensure that the Gifts and Hospitality register is regularly reviewed and incidents 
of apparent breaches investigated with the outcome/justification recorded in the register. 

The Council has a range of officers who are responsible for ensuring and monitoring compliance with 
statutory standards, such as the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer who both sit on the 
Council’s leadership team. Through our review we are not aware of any instances where officers or 
elected Members have not complied with the necessary standards. 

The Council revised its Corporate Governance Code in January 2021 In line with Code of Corporate 
Governance is derived from work undertaken by the Independent Commission on Good Governance 
in Public Service – a commission set up by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) and the Office for Public Management. 

We have not identified any significant weaknesses with regard to the Council’s arrangements for 
ensuring adherence to laws and regulations or ethical standards but we have made 
recommendations for improvements in the way in which officer gifts and hospitality are recorded on 
the register.

Budgetary control 2020/21

We have considered the Council’s processes for monitoring the 2020/21 budget during what was a 
difficult year to accurately forecast costs and income due to the effects of the pandemic, periods of 
lockdown, and incremental announcements of government funding.

Budget monitoring reports were submitted quarterly during the year to the Internal Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, which include a detailed analysis of budget variances. The quarterly reports 
include monitoring of the capital programme. The Capital Programme is also reviewed by the 
Community and Revenue Committee. Summary budget updates were provided to Cabinet during the 
year in addition to the formal quarterly monitoring.

As the financial year progressed the overall forecast outturn position improved as the costs of the 
pandemic and associated government funding became more certain. There was no requirement 
during the year to implement additional controls on expenditure.

The budget monitoring and outturn reports provide detailed information on budget variances. The 
reporting did not distinguish between recurring and non-recurring elements relating to the 
pandemic or other non-Covid19 related variances. We have made an improvement recommendation 
that additional analysis should be provided in budget reports to distinguish between recurring and 
non-recurring variances that together make up the net revenue position. An example would be the 
on-going impact of the pandemic on future years.

We have not identified any significant weaknesses with regard to the Council’s arrangements for 
budget monitoring.

Conclusion

Overall, we found no evidence of significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements for ensuring 
that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks.  We have made three improvement 
recommendations which are set out on the following page.

Governance

P
age 51



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Governance

19

6 Recommendation Risks within the Council’s Corporate risk register should be mapped to corporate priorities and the 
methodology for assessing and scoring risks included in the Risk Management Strategy. Reporting of key 
strategic risks should be through written reports not verbal updates. 

Why/impact Mapping risks to corporate priorities would ensure that their potential impact on the corporate plan is 
understood and only key risks are reported to Members. The methodology would ensure consistency of 
approach.

Summary findings The risk registers reported to Members include a description of the risk, mitigating actions, and a RAG 
rated risk score derived from the severity and likelihood of the risk occurring. Risks are assigned to named 
officers and contain a narrative on the current position. Risks are not mapped to corporate priorities. Risk 
updates to members are generally provided verbally.

Management 
comment

Management does not see this as adding any value.  Key strategic risks are reported in reports to the 
Council’s various committees, Full Council, Community & Resources, Internal Overview and Scrutiny, 
Audit and Governance etc. It is factually inaccurate to state that strategic risks such as financial viability, 
cyber security etc are not communicated to members.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 52



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Governance

20

7 Recommendation The Council should improve the recording and review of the Gifts and Hospitality Register by including 
the name of the individual who received the gift/hospitality; the actual or estimated value of the 
gift/hospitality received/offered and a requirement to record a justification for gifts and hospitality 
received in excess of the stated policy.

Why/impact Transparency in the recording of Gifts and Hospitality Register is a key control in mitigating the risks of 
bribery and corruption and ensure impartiality in decisions made by the Council.

Summary findings The current Gifts and Hospitality Register does not require the name of the individual who received the 
gift/hospitality or the value of the gift/hospitality received/offered. There is also no requirement to 
record a justification for gifts and hospitality received in excess of the stated policy.

Management 
comment

In practice gifts are often sent to Council Teams rather than individuals, additionally it is not always 
possible to assign a price to the gifts, although this can be inferred e.g. Box of Chocolates. Management 
believe the current publication of the gift and hospitality register provides sufficient context for elected 
members and the wider public.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 53



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Governance

21

8 Recommendation Budget reports should distinguish between recurring and non-recurring variances that together make up 
the net revenue position. An example would be the on-going impact of the pandemic on future years.

Why/impact It is not clear within the context of the predicted funding gaps, what the net cost of the pandemic was 
and how this would impact on future income and expenditure streams.

Summary findings The budget monitoring and outturn reports provide detailed information on budget variances. The 
reporting did not distinguish between recurring and non-recurring elements relating to the pandemic or 
other non-Covid19 related variances. It was not clear at outturn what the cost of the pandemic was to the 
Council and how this would impact future years.

Management 
comment

Management does not agree with this recommendation, when undertaking budget monitoring it is not 
always possible to know if variances are one off or recurring.  These issues are picked up when the MTFS 
is updated and assumptions made about income and expenditure pressures over the life of the MTFS.

The period covered by this report ends right in the middle of the pandemic when there was no way of 
knowing what the impact would be going forward so it would not have been practical to undertake this 
work in additional to the reporting to Central Government via various returns and the additional 
workload of distributing Covid grant aid.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 54



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

We considered how the Council:

• responded to the changes required as 
a result of Covid-19 

• uses financial and performance 
information to assess performance to 
identify areas for improvement

• evaluates the services it provides to 
assess performance and identify areas 
for improvement

• ensures it delivers its role within 
significant partnerships, engages with 
stakeholders, monitors performance 
against expectations and ensures 
action is taken where necessary to 
improve

• ensures that it commissions or 
procures services in accordance with 
relevant legislation, professional 
standards and internal policies, and 
assesses whether it is realising the 
expected benefits.

COVID-19 arrangements

During 2020/21, the Section 151 Officer continually assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s long-term financial viability and provided regular 
updates to Members as part of the standard financial reporting to members. Overall Central government covid related support exceeded directly 
attributable covid cost pressures/lost income by approx. £0.37m. The Council is able to identify directly attributable Covid-19 impacts for some 
income streams such as business rates, parking and leisure, it is not able to identify the Covid-19 related impact indirectly attributable for other 
income such as planning. Planning income almost doubled in 2020/21 . An element of this could be connected to peoples’ desire to relocate to the 
south west with increased working from home. We have therefore made a recommendation for improvement in this respect. It is important for the 
Council to get an understanding of the exceptional non-recurring nature of these variances to budget so that it can more accurately assess the 
financial impact of Covid-19 for the future.  

Performance management

The Council’s Corporate Plan was approved in February 2020 and sets out the four key priority themes of local economy, community, health and 
housing, and the Council. The Council has set a carbon neutral target of 2030. 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) relating to the delivery of services and the Council’s Corporate Strategy are reported quarterly to the Council’s 
Senior Management Team (SMT) and then to members through the Quarterly Business Reports (QBRs).  The QBR style changed in 2021 to reduce level 
of detail and provide better alignment to the Corporate Plan.

Performance monitoring reports are presented quarterly to Cabinet, and the Internal Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The reporting includes RAG 
rated key performance indicators that are aligned to the relevant corporate priority, with the previous year’s performance, the target performance 
and actual performance provided. The responsible manager is identified and can provide commentary on the level of performance. Trends analysis 
has been introduced to reports in the latter part of the year. Performance that is below target is easily identifiable from the indicators, the indicators 
are supported by narrative in a covering report identifying key trends.

Performance Data is obtained from service heads and collated by the Performance Officer. A Sense check is applied by Performance Officer and SMT 
but underlying data not validated. A Data Quality Policy is not in place.

Our review of the Council’s arrangements for managing performance has not identified any significant areas of weakness. We did identify the 
following improvements from our work. The Council should create a Data Quality Policy to recognise that good data is integral to performance 
management and so needs to be accurate, timely and complete. The policy should set out the relevant roles and responsibilities and the need for 
adequate controls over data input and verification.

The Council has a workforce strategy however this is not aligned to financial plans or strategic priorities. Like many organisations the Council is 
suffering from recruitment and retention problems resulting in long term use of expensive agency staff. The relative costs/benefits of increasing 
salaries to improve recruitment of permanent staff v the costs of agency staff (including investment in training) has not been explored. An 
improvement recommendation has been made in this respect.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

22

P
age 55



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

23

Benchmarking 

Benchmarking is an effective tool that enables an organisation to compare and analyse 
its performance with others. It can provide a basis for collaboration and identify areas 
for improvement.

We have identified that the Council does undertake performance benchmarking for 
some key service areas. The Council benchmarks data against 150 indicators by 
comparing those data points to its nearest neighbours as defined by the CIPFA nearest 
neighbours grouping. The results are then mapped against the Council’s corporate 
performance as set out in the QBRs.  It is not clear how this data is then used by the 
Council to improve performance, inform future strategy or identify areas for possible 
savings.

The benchmarking that we undertook compared the unit costs for a range of services 
and identified areas where the unit costs were very high in comparison to its nearest 
neighbours. Nearest neighbours in this context are those  with similar age 
demographic, employment, education and deprivations levels as shown in the chart 
opposite. Our analysis showed that overall costs per head of population were in line 
with those neighbours there was one outlier with higher costs per head in 
Environmental and Regulatory Services. This is an are the Council may wish to consider 
the reasons for such outlier.

An LGA Peer Review in 2017 identified the need for the Council to embrace digital and 
become more entrepreneurial. As stated previously the Council and officers are still 
not demonstrating the level of entrepreneurial or commercial capability required to 
sustainably meet long term funding gaps

Significant partnerships

Sub-committees have bee established to monitor performance of key partnerships

The Leisure Contract between Torridge District Council and 1610 expired in March 
2022. These activities have been severely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. Going 
forward it has been agreed that Leisure Services will be provided through a Local 
Authority Trading Company. This is the first time that Torridge District Council have 
undertaken this type of activity and therefore carries significant risk.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

The Council has recognised that it did not have sufficient in-house expertise for such a complex 
venture and planned to engage external consultants to assist with this project. In addition, the 
Council needs to ensure that adequate governance and reporting arrangements are in place 
and that any revenue and capital costs are adequately factored into the medium-term financial 
plan and treasury management strategy. 

The Council works with a variety of partners to deliver corporate objectives and priorities for 
the local area. There are many examples of strategies developed at partnership level being 
translated into actions for the Council to deliver, and evidence that partnership work is 
overseen by the Council. Separate entries on the Corporate Risk Register confirm risks are 
being assessed for such partnerships.

An External Overview & Scrutiny Committee monitors the performance of key partners. The 
Committee received a number of such reports which were reviewed and challenged by the 
Committee. 

The Council has adopted the Devon Districts Procurement Strategy. The joint strategy aims to 
embed a corporate procurement approach and promote collaboration opportunities. The 
strategy includes an action plan that identifies four priority areas of contract management, 
sustainable procurement, engaging with local business and behaving commercially. The Devon 
District Procurement Group reviews each council’s progress against the plan.

Team Devon, a partnership comprising representatives from business, education and local 
authorities, launched the Covid-19 Economy and Business Recovery Prospectus in July 2020. 
This sets out the vision for Devon’s economic recovery and forms the basis for lobbying the 
government for additional funding.  The Economy Policy Development Group received regular 
updates during the year on the Covid-19 economic response, including the work of Team 
Devon.

Our work has not identified any areas of significant weakness regarding how the Council works 
with its strategic partners.

Conclusion

Overall, we found no evidence of significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements for 
improving the way the Council delivers its services. .  We have made three improvement 
recommendations which are set out on the following pages.

P
age 56



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

24

9 Recommendation The Council should be clearer on how it utilises benchmarking data to improve performance, inform 
future strategy or identify areas for possible savings.

Why/impact Formal corporate benchmarking of service costs can be used to inform future budget rounds and service 
redesign. This will be particularly relevant as the Council seeks to implement a more strategic approach to 
generating savings to balance the budget.

Summary findings It is not clear how the Council  utilises benchmarking data to improve performance, inform future 
strategy or identify areas for possible savings.

Management 
comment

Bench marking rarely provides a meaningful insight of the performance of one’s Council against similar 
Councils as all Councils organise their affairs differently.  As a simple example a Finance department may 
include the payroll function whereas in an other Council this is undertaken within HR.  Management note 
the observation but see bench marking as having little merit.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 57



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

25

10 Recommendation The Council’s Workforce Plan should be clearly aligned to requirements for the delivery of the Council’s 
strategic objectives and costs of the plan reflected in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. 

Why/impact To ensure that the potential workforce implications of the Council’s overall strategy are fully thought 
through and costed. The Council needs to ensure that it has the right people in the right place at the right 
time in order to deliver its strategic objectives and that financial and workforce plans are aligned

Summary findings The Council is suffering from recruitment and retention problems resulting in long term use of expensive 
agency staff. 

Management 
comment

The Councils’ workforce plan includes reference to Apprentices and Graduate Appointments and the 
need for succession planning. Monies have been set aside to reserve to fund these appointments.  The 
Council’s agreed staffing structure are fully costed over the life of the MTFS

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 58



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

26

11 Recommendation The Council should create a Data Quality Policy. The policy should set out the relevant roles and 
responsibilities and the need for adequate controls over data input and verification.

Why/impact Good data is integral to performance management and so needs to be accurate, timely and complete

Summary findings Data is obtained from service heads and collated by performance officer. A Sense check is applied by 
Performance Officer and SMT but underlying data is not validated.

Management 
comment

The Council data from Service Heads collated by the performance officer is circulated and reviewed by 
the Senior Management Team before publication and available for challenge at the various Committee 
levels.  The QBR reporting is closely links the Financial reporting and the Strategic goal reporting and is 
well scrutinised by officers and members alike..

There is a formal process albeit not collated into a named Data Quality Policy because there are so many 
departments.  Our website has undergone a total refresh with training to review and improve our data 
sharing and accessibility. Each department  processes and controls for publication of data.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

P
age 59



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

27

12 Recommendation The Council needs to seek professional advice at each stage of setting up the trading company to deliver 
leisure services. In addition, the Council needs to ensure that adequate governance and reporting 
arrangements are in place and that any revenue and capital costs are adequately factored into the 
medium-term financial plan and treasury management strategy.

Why/impact This is a complex new development for the Council which it has not undertaken before and therefore 
carries significant risk.

Summary findings It has been agreed that on the expiry of the current arrangement Leisure Services will be provided 
through a Local Authority Trading Company. This is the first time that Torridge District Council have 
undertaken this type of activity.

Management 
comment

The Council did engage consultants to advise on the establishment of the wholly owned trading company 
Active Torridge. Governance arrangements are in place for the LATC, with a board consisting of elected  
members, Officers and a Non Executive member.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

P
age 60



Appendices 

P
age 61



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Council

29

Role of the Chief Financial Officer (or 
equivalent):

• Preparation of the statement of 
accounts

• Assessing the Council’s ability to 
continue to operate as a going 
concern

Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money are 
accountable for their stewardship of the 
resources entrusted to them. They should 
account properly for their use of resources and 
manage themselves well so that the public can 
be confident. 

Financial statements are the main way in which 
local public bodies account for how they use 
their resources. Local public bodies are required 
to prepare and publish financial statements 
setting out their financial performance for the 
year. To do this, bodies need to maintain 
proper accounting records and ensure they 
have effective systems of internal control. 

All local public bodies are responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness from 
their resources. This includes taking properly 
informed decisions and managing key 
operational and financial risks so that they can 
deliver their objectives and safeguard public 
money. Local public bodies report on their 
arrangements, and the effectiveness with which 
the arrangements are operating, as part of their 
annual governance statement. 

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) is 
responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view, and for such internal 
control as the Chief Financial Officer (or 
equivalent) determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation  of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) or 
equivalent is required to prepare the financial 
statements in accordance with proper practices 
as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice 
on local authority accounting in the United 
Kingdom. In preparing the financial statements, 
the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) is 
responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and use the going 
concern basis of accounting unless there is an 
intention by government that the services 
provided by the Council will no longer be 
provided.

The Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 
governance, and to review regularly the 
adequacy and effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 

P
age 62



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Appendix B - Risks of significant weaknesses - our 
procedures and findings

30

Risk of significant weakness Procedures undertaken Findings Outcome

Financial sustainability was identified as a 
potential significant weakness at the 
planning stage, see pages 6 to 15 for 
more details.

No additional procedures undertaken. Financial 
sustainability was assessed through the standard 
procedures including reviewing the budget setting process 
and medium term financial plan.

No significant weaknesses identified Appropriate arrangements in 
place,  five improvement 
recommendations raised.

Governance was not identified as a 
potential significant weakness at the 
planning stage. see pages 16 to 21 for 
more details.

No additional procedures undertaken No significant weaknesses identified Appropriate arrangements in 
place, three improvement 
recommendations raised.

Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness was not identified as a 
potential significant weakness, see pages 
22 to 27 for more details 

No additional procedures undertaken No significant weaknesses identified Appropriate arrangements in 
place, four improvement 
recommendations raised.

As part of our planning and assessment work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform further procedures 
on. The risks we identified are detailed in the table below, along with the further procedures we performed, our findings and the final 
outcome of our work:

P
age 63



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Appendix C - An explanatory note on 
recommendations

31

Type of 
recommendation Background Raised within this report Page reference

Statutory

Written recommendations to the Council under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the Council to discuss and respond 
publicly to the report.

No N/A

Key

The NAO Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses as part of 
their arrangements to secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions 
that should be taken by the Council. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

No N/A

Improvement

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the Council, but are 
not a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements.

Yes Pages 11-15
Pages 19-21
Pages 24-27

A range of different recommendations can be raised by the Council’s auditors as follows:

P
age 64



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report  | October 2022

Commercial in confidence

Appendix D – Use of formal auditor’s powers

32

We bring the following matters to your attention:

Statutory recommendations
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written 
recommendations to the audited body which need to be considered by the body and responded to 
publicly

We have not issued any statutory recommendations.

Public interest report
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the power to make a 
report if they consider a matter is sufficiently important to be brought to the attention of the audited 
body or the public as a matter of urgency, including matters which may already be known to the 
public, but where it is in the public interest for the auditor to publish their independent view.

We have not issued a public interest report.

Application to the Court
Under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item of 
account is contrary to law, they may apply to the court for a declaration to that effect.

We have not made an application to the Courts.

Advisory notice
Under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an advisory 
notice if the auditor thinks that the authority or an officer of the authority:
• is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority incurring 

unlawful expenditure,
• is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would 

be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency, or
• is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.

We have not issued any advisory notices.

Judicial review
Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an application 
for judicial review of a decision of an authority, or of a failure by an authority to act, which it is 
reasonable to believe would have an effect on the accounts of that body.

We have not applied for a judicial review.

P
age 65



grantthornton.co.uk

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context 
requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal 
entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one 
another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 66



P
age 67

A
genda Item

 10



Commercial in confidence

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

Net pension liability –

£47m •

•

•

•

•

•



















P
age 77



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 78



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

P
age 80



Commercial in confidence

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests for bank and investment balances. 

This permission was granted and the requests were sent.  All of the requests were returned with positive 

confirmation.

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's  accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial 

statement disclosures. Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.

All information and explanations requested from management was provided.

P
age 81



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 82



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 83



Commercial in confidence

Specified 

procedures for 

Whole of 

Government 

Accounts P
age 84



Commercial in confidence

P
age 85



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 86



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

P
age 87

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 88



P
age 89



Commercial in confidence







P
age 90



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

P
age 91



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 92



Commercial in confidence

P
age 93



Commercial in confidence

P
age 94



Commercial in confidence

P
age 95



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members of Torridge District Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Torridge District Council (the ‘Authority’) 

for the year ended 31 March 2022, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the 

Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial 

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 

2021/22.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 

2022 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 

(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the 

Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are 

independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical

Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Section 151 Officer’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Section 151 Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the 

expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 that the Authority’s financial statements 

shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks 

associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In doing so we 

had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements 

and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on the 

application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the 

reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s 

disclosures over the going concern period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 

uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 

significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 

at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Section 151 Officer’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is appropriate. 

P
age 96



Commercial in confidence

The responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer with respect to going concern are 

described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those 

Charged with Governance for the financial statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the 

financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 

whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 

misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required 

to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 

Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 

on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are 

required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with 

‘delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published 

by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which 

we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual 

Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily 

addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 

statements and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published 

together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial 

year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 

statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of 

the audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 

contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those Charged 

with Governance for the financial statements

As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one 

of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 

authority, that officer is the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer is responsible 

for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial 

statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC 

Code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22, 

P
age 97



Commercial in confidence

for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as 

the Section 151 Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Section 151 Officer is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the 

Authority will no longer be provided.

The Audit and Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those 

Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial 

reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 

located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting 

irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 

regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to 

detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the 

inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements 

in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly 

planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including 

fraud is detailed below: 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are 

applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant ,which are 

directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements, are those 

related to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards as 

interpreted and adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 

authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local 

Government Act 2003, and the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as 

amended by the Local Government Finance Act 1992) and the Local 

Government Finance Act 2012. 

• We enquired of senior officers and the Audit and Governance Committee, 

concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

− the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

− the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

− the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or 

non-compliance with laws and regulations.

• We enquired of senior officers, internal audit and the Audit and Governance 

Committee, whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with 

laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or 

alleged fraud.

• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material 

misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives 

and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the 

evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. We determined that 

the principal risks were in relation to journals, accounting estimates and critical 

judgements made by management.

P
age 98

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

• Our audit procedures involved:

− evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Section 151 

Officer has in place to prevent and detect fraud;

− journal entry testing, with a focus on management override of controls;

− challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its 

significant accounting estimates in respect of land and buildings, 

investment property and defined benefit pensions liability valuations;

− assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and 

regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement 

item.

• These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that 

the financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one 

resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently 

more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. 

Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from 

events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we 

would become aware of it.

• Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and 

capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement 

team's.

− understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a 

similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and 

participation

− knowledge of the local government sector

− understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the 

Authority including:

− the provisions of the applicable legislation

− guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

− the applicable statutory provisions.

• In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an 

understanding of:

− the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and 

expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to 

understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected 

financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in 

risks of material misstatement.

− the Authority's control environment, including the policies and 

procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the 

requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the 

Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we 

have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.  

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will 

be reported in our commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual 

Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be 

reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this work does 

not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2022.

P
age 99



Commercial in confidence

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 

stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness 

of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, 

nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 

effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 

to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021. This 

guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. 

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to 

structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it 

can continue to deliver its services; 

Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 

manages its risks; and 

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information 

about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its 

services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for 

each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support 

our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking 

our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant 

weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in certification of completion 

of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Torridge 

District Council for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the requirements 

of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we 

have completed:

our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources and issued our Auditor’s Annual Report’

the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component 

Assurance statement for the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2022.

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 

with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 

43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 

we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and 

the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 

opinions we have formed.

Julie Masci, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Bristol

Date:

P
age 100



Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton UK LLP

2 Glass Wharf

Temple Quay

Bristol

BS2 0EL

25th October 2022

Dear Sirs

Torridge District Council

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial 

statements of Torridge District Council for the year ended 31 March 2022 for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Council financial statements are 

presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 and applicable law. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as 

we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial 

statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2021/22 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly presented in 

accordance therewith.

We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council 

and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial 

statements.

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has 

been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could 

have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 

internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 

measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material judgements 

used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance 

with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand our 

responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods, assumptions 

or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and 

why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used. We are satisfied 

that the methods, the data and the significant assumptions used by us in making 

accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve 

recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the Code 

and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 

valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits 

disclosures are consistent with our knowledge.  We confirm that all settlements and 

curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.  We also confirm that all 

significant post-employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted for. 

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or 

mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or 

non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure.

P
age 101



Commercial in confidence

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for 

and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or 

disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 

changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council’s financial 

statements have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and 

disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the 

Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have 

not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that : 

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to 

cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be 

appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting because, in 

such an event, services it performs can be expected to continue to be 

delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial 

statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful 

representation of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its 

financial statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a) 

above; and 

c. the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or 

conditions relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a 

going concern need to be made in the financial statements 

The Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a 

material effect on the Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

Information Provided

We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 

preparation of the Council’s financial statements such as records, 

documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 

of your audit; and

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from 

whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management 

is aware.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 

financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 

statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we 

are aware of and that affects the Council and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.

P
age 102



Commercial in confidence

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 

suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, 

former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 

preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related 

party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose 

effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the 

Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not 

aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the 

Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Council’s 

financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and 

Governance Committee at its meeting on 25th October 2022.

Signed on behalf of the Council

P
age 103



Commercial in confidence

Chair of Audit and Governance Committee

Torridge District Council

Riverbank House

Bideford

EX39 2QG

September 2022

Dear Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee

The original expectation under the approach to VFM arrangements work set out in the 2020 Code of Audit Practice was that auditors would follow an annual cycle of work, with 

more timely reporting on VFM arrangements, including issuing their commentary on VFM arrangements for local government by 30 September each year at the latest. 

Unfortunately, due to the on-going challenges impacting on the local audit market, including the need to meet regulatory and other professional requirements, we have been 

unable to complete our work as quickly as would normally be expected. The National Audit Office has updated its guidance to auditors to allow us to postpone completion of 

our work on arrangements to secure value for money and focus our resources firstly on the delivery of our opinions on the financial statements. This is intended to help ensure 

as many as possible could be issued in line with national timetables and legislation.

As a result, we have therefore not yet issued our Auditor’s Annual Report, including our commentary on arrangements to secure value for money. We now expect to publish 

our report no later than 31 December 2022. 

For the purposes of compliance with the 2020 Code, this letter constitutes the required audit letter explaining the reasons for delay.

Yours faithfully

Julie Masci

Director

P
age 104



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 105

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/c0a84b72-afee-44ee-8182-5350c30177fe/FRC-Grant-Thornton-UK-LLP-Public-Report_July-2022.pdf


P
age 106



 
 
torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc 

 
 
Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon, EX39 2QG 
 
 
25 October 2022 
 
 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
2 Glass Wharf 
Temple Quay 
Bristol 
BS2 0EL 
 
 
Dear Sirs 

Torridge District Council 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements 
of Torridge District Council for the year ended 31 March 2022 for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion as to whether the Council financial statements are presented fairly, in all material 
respects in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2021/22 and applicable law.  
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2021/22 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly 
presented in accordance therewith. 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the 
Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There 
has been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance 
of internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material judgements 
used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance 
with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand 
our responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods, 
assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting 
framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used. 

Torridge – a great place to live, work and visit  

Page 107

Agenda Item 11



 
 
torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc 

We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant assumptions used by 
us in making accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to 
achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance 
with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. 

vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 
valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits 
disclosures are consistent with our knowledge.  We confirm that all settlements and 
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.  We also confirm that 
all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted 
for.  
 

vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-
recurring items requiring separate disclosure. 

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for 
and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Code. 

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or 
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and 
disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council’s 
financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications 
and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

xi. The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

xii. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xiii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the 
Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and 
have not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds 
that :  

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to cease 
its operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt 
the going concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it 
performs can be expected to continue to be delivered by related public 
authorities and preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis 
will still provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial 
statements 

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial 
statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and  

c. the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or 
conditions relevant to going concern. 

 

Page 108



 
 
torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc 

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a 
going concern need to be made in the financial statements  
 

xv. The Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a 
material effect on the Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 
 

Information Provided 

xvi. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the Council’s financial statements such as records, 
documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your 
audit; and 

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from whom 
you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xvii. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which 
management is aware. 

xviii. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 
the financial statements. 

xix. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 

xx. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that 
we are aware of and that affects the Council and involves: 

 
a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

xxi. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 
suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, 
former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

xxii. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 
preparing financial statements. 

xxiii. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the 
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

xxiv. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose 
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

Annual Governance Statement 

xxv. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the 
Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not 
aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS. 

Page 109



 
 
torridge.gov.uk @torridgedc 

Narrative Report 

xxvi. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the 
Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the 
Council’s financial statements. 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and 
Governance Committee at its meeting on 25th October 2022. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

Name……………………………   Name…………………………… 

 

Position………………………….   Position…………………………. 

 

Date…………………………….   Date……………………………. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



 
  

Agenda Item  

REPORT OF Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer 

To: Audit & Governance 

Subject: Update on the Appointment of External Auditors for the period 2023/24 – 

2027/28 

Date: 25th October 2022 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  

To update members on the progress in appointing external auditors for the period 2023/24 – 
2027/28.  

 
1. Background 

 

The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including the audit of the 

2022/23 accounts. The Council having previously opted into the „appointing person‟ national auditor 

appointment arrangements established by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the period 

covering the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23.  

In a report to Full Council on the 22nd January 2022 members agreed with the recommendation from 

Audit and Governance Committee of the 18th January 2022 that Torridge opt into the  PSAA 

procurement of external audit services for the period 23/24 to 27/28. 

Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded in 2017. At that 

time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few changes in audit requirements, and 

local audit fees had been reducing over a long period. 98% of those bodies eligible opted into the 

national scheme and attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts 

took effect from 1 April 2018. 

As a result of a series of financial crisis and failures in the private sector this led to a review of the role 

of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Various reviews of the “effectiveness of audit” were 

undertaken in the wake of these failures.  

The Kingman review led to a drive for the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) to deliver measurable 

improvements in audit quality. Essentially this resulted in audit firms undertaking additional work to 

gain deeper levels of assurance. This additional work led to audits not being completed in accordance 

with publication deadlines, and additional costs to Councils by the fee variations. The situation has 

been accentuated by auditor recruitment and retention challenges. 

An example of the fee variations incurred by Torridge Council over and above the original base scale 

fee is shown overleaf. As is demonstrated the actual costs at £53k are 67% higher than the original 

base scale fee.  These fee variations are recurrent i.e. the Council is incurring these costs annually 

over the original scale fee each audit. 

Page 111

Agenda Item 12



 
  

 
 
 
2. Report 

 
Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027 
 

On the 3rd October 2022 the PSAA announced the outcome of its procurement of audit services for 470 
local government, police and fire bodies (99% of eligible bodies having opted into the national 
procurement). PSAA have offered contracts to six companies following the competitive bidding 
process. The split of audit work allocated by PSAA is as shown below, and the previous percentages 
for those firms undertaking the audits for 18/19 to 22/23. 
 
    23/24 – 27/28   18/19 – 22/23  
Audit Firm     

Grant Thornton  36%    40% 
Mazars   18%    22.5% 
Ernst & Young   30%    30% 
Deloitte       6% 
BDO        6%    
KPMG    14% 
Bishop Fleming  3.75% 
Azets Audit Services  3.25% 

The PSAA press release of the 3rd October 2022 indicated that Councils should expect an increase 
of 150% on their 2022/23 costs. For Torridge this would be a £75k increase in its external audit 
fees. 

 
The PSAA press release states they recognise that this will be a significant financial challenge to 
local authorities. They have raised concerns on behalf of the local authority sector with DLUHC. 
  

Original Scale Fee £31,792

Fee Variations

Pension valuation £2,188

Property valuation £2,188

Value for Money £9,000

Increased FRC challenge £3,125

ISA 540  Accounting Estimates £2,100

Other £2,900

subtotal £21,501

Revised total £53,293

Page 112



 
  

3. 

   
Financial Implications 
As detailed within the report 

 
Human Resources Implications 
Nothing specific from this report.  
 
Sustainability Implications 
n/a 

 
Equality/Diversity 
Nothing specific from this report. 

 
Risk Management 
The report highlights the financial risk to the Council of this increase financial pressure. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This is associated with Torridge‟s Risk Strategy. 

 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 
Clearly the procurement process undertaken by the PSAA has resulted in a significant 
financial challenge to the Council at a time when it is facing increased financial pressures 
arising from the Housing crisis and the costs of the living. These increased costs will be 
captured as the Medium Term Financial Strategy is updated. In light of the funding 
challenges faced by Central Government at a national level it would not be prudent to expect 
any central government support towards these increased audit costs. 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

 The report is for noting only  
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation –12 October 2022 

Officers Consulted –  
Chief Executive 
Head of Communities 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 

 Contact Officer: David Heyes– Finance Manager & Section 151 Officer 

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2022/23 

 

 Cycle 

1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 

5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycl

e 8 

  19/07/2022  25/10/2022  17/01/2023 04/04/2023  
         

        

Audit 
Committee 

    
  

 
 

Risk 
Management 

 Corporate Risk  
Corporate Risk 

Register 
 Cyber Security Corporate Risk 

 

Internal Audit 

 
Audit Reports 

issued 
 

Audit Reports 
issued 

 Audit Reports Issued 
 

Audit Reports 
Issued 

 

 

   
Charter & 
Strategy 

 
Progress with agreed 

Audit Actions 
 

 

       
 

        
 

Accounts 

 
Draft statement of 

Accounts 
 Annual Report  

Preparation for Annual 
Accounts 

Contract Waivers 
 

 
Contract Waivers 

annual report 
 

Audit Findings 
Report 

 Update on 

appointment of 
External Auditors 

 

 

        

        

External 
Audit 

 
Annual Accounts 

findings report 
 

Letter of 
Representation 

 Update Report 
Update Report 

 

   

Update on 

PSSA 
appointment of 

external auditors 

  
External Audit 

Plan 

 

   
   

 
 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 13


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Action List
	7 Audit Reports Issued
	8 Internal Audit  - Charter and Strategy
	9 Annual Report
	10 2021/22 Audit Findings Report
	11 Letter of Representation
	12 Update on PSSA Appointment Process for External Audit of Accounts from 2023/24
	13 Forward Plan

